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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FAT FET
For the year ended 31 December HE+ZHA=1+—H
EFE
Revenue KA 930,276 928,785
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (18 &5F (222,399) (177,290)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners wmAa AEWN (B8 5F (218,450) (170,916)
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk (BB &F
Basic (in HK cents) EHAR GBI (3.49) (2.75)
Diluted (in HK cents) #s8 (GB1) (3.49) (2.75)
Average shareholders’ equity THREER 965,246 1,206,940
Average capital employed THEFAER 1,307,503 1,836,993
At 31 December R+-_B=+—H
Total indebtedness "RIETS 591,050 1,224,564
Shareholders’ equity st gl 801,812 1,128,680
Capital employed FRER 2 922,517 1,692,488
Ratio tE=
Return on average capital employed S SE)I=ENEIEES 3 (17.01%) (9.65%)
Return on average equity S ) Bl E 4 (22.63%) (9.30%)
Total debt to total capital MEBEREEARLEEX 5 42.93% 52.58%
Notes: MI5E
1) Total indebtedness = total interest bearing borrowings 1) WEW =t EEBEE
2) Capital employed = shareholders’ funds + non-controlling 2) BAER = REES + JEERESR + IER
interests + non-current liabilities F}aE
3) Return on average capital employed = (loss)/profit for the 3) FHFAEARRRE = £E (B8 &7
year/average capital employed S EHFAE R
4) Return on average equity = net (loss)/profit attributable to 4) THEHORE = BB ARG BB &
owners/average shareholders’ equity FIPEE TR R
5) Total debt to total capital = debt/(shareholders’ funds + non- 5) MEBREEARLE - 88 RRES +

controlling interests + debt)

4 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ("Year”), the
Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$930.28
million (2021: HK$928.79 million), representing an increase
of 0.16% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$135.21 million (2021: HK$161.08 million).
The loss (net of tax) was approximately HK$222.40 million
(2021: loss (net of tax) was HK$177.29 million). The loss
(net of tax) was mainly attributable to the increase in finance
costs.

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus
on existing resources to further strengthen and grow the
Group's business both organically and through acquisitions
when appropriate opportunities arise. The Group considered
the business mix has been diversified during the past few
years. The Group will focus on the existing businesses and
will expand by self-development and investing in similar
business. Investments would be carefully selected among
all the choices we explored and would be operated with
experienced business partners.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group’s wine and liquor business was principally engaged
in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the PRC.

During the Year, there was no revenue generated from the
wine and liquor business (2021: Nil) as our sale points and
delivery services were interrupted and even temporarily
suspended during the coronavirus outbreak. The Group
will continue to review the development of this business
segment.

Trading of Food Products Business

Trading of food products business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$464.80 million (2021: HK$399.54
million) and accounted for 49.96% (2021: 43.02%) of the
total revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for the
Year was approximately HK$10.62 million (2021: HK$9.13
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R

Construction and Development Business

Following the successful bid for the land use rights of a land
parcel in Lianyungang, Jiangsu in PRC on 5 December 2017,
the Group already obtained the Land Planning Permit and
the Construction Planning Permit for the
City" during the year 2018. The commercial housing pre-
sale permit of phase one of the Seafood Food City was also
obtained and sales of the properties in that project started
in the second half of 2019. However, the outbreak of novel
coronavirus affected the sales plan and construction plan. It
is expected that the whole construction of the Seafood Food
City on the Land Parcel will be delayed to second half of
2023.

"Seafood Food

Rental Business

The rental business was engaged in the leasing of logistic
facilities in Hong Kong and office facilities in the PRC. This
business recorded a revenue of approximately HK$231.85
million (2021: HK$271.66 million) and accounted for
24.92% (2021: 29.25%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment for the Year was approximately
HK$81.59 million (2021: HK$98.24 million). After few years
of development, this segment becomes one of the core
businesses of the Group. The Group has rental business
in Hong Kong and will keep on exploring and investing in
potential renting facilities.

Financial Leasing Business

The financial leasing business recorded a revenue of
HK$16.13 million (2021: HK$20.47 million) and accounted
for 1.73% (2021: 2.20%) of the total revenue. Gross profit
of this business segment for the Year was approximately
HK$12.96 million (2021: HK$17.69 million).

Mineral Products Business

The mineral products business includes the flotation selection
of non-ferrous metals mines and sales of mineral products.
This business segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$217.49 million (2021: HK$237.11 million) and accounted
for 23.38% (2021: 25.53%) of the total revenue. The Group
expects the market of this business will remain fine and the
revenue contributed by this segment will represent a larger
portion of the Group’s revenue. Gross profit of this business
segment for the Year was approximately HK$30.04 million
(2021: HK$36.02 million).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Co-operation

(i) On 7 September 2022, the Company entered into
a strategic cooperation framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) with Xishuangbanna Jinggu
Agricultural Development Co., Ltd.* (FEEERRMIEA
EXHEARAT), (“Jinggu”, together with the
Company, the “Parties”) in respect of the proposed
cooperation in the import and export businesses in
Southeast Asia (the “Strategic Cooperation”). Details
of the Framework Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 September
2022.

(i) On 11 October 2022, the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi Trading
Ltd.* (R =L EEBRAE) ("Meiming
Wenshi”), entered into a purchase cooperation
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”)
with Shenzhen City Huilin Soybean Technology Co.,
Ltd.* CRIITFEMARZRMBRASE), (“Huilin”,
together with the Company and Meiming Wenshi, the
“Parties”) in respect of the proposed cooperation in
the purchase of commaodities, including but not limited
to, oil, soybean, sugar, etc. by the Huilin from the
Group (the “Cooperation”). Details of the Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 11 October 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$930.28
million (2021: HK$928.79 million), representing an increase
of 0.16% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$135.21 million (2021: HK$161.08 million).
The loss (net of tax) was HK$222.40 million (2021: loss (net
of tax) was HK$177.29 million).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$22.92 million (2021: HK$23.72 million), representing a
decrease of 3.37% from last year and 2.46% (2021: 2.55%)
of the Group’s revenue. It was relatively the same as last year.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$92.20
million (2021: HK$108.47 million), representing a decrease
of 15.00% from last year and 9.91% (2021: 11.68%) of the
Group's revenue. The decrease was mainly due to equity-
share based payment in 2021.

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$148.50 million (2021:
HK$101.84 million), representing an increase of 45.81%
from last year and 15.96% (2021: 10.96%) of the Group’s
revenue.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were trade deposits of HK$244.67 million (2021:
HK$320.70 million) paid for food products and mineral
products. There were no progress payments for the
investment targets (2021: HK$24.61 million). HK$28.30
million (2021: HK$42.98 million) was paid as rental deposit
for the rental business.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued shares
of the Company was 6,313,366,083 shares. 88,240,400
shares options were exercised during the Year and as a result
of which 88,240,400 shares were issued.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$801.81 million
(2021: HK$1,128.68 million). Net current assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$161.20 million (2021: HK$219.54 million). The current
ratio (calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.15 (2021: 1.18).

The Group's cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$14.88 million (2021:
HK$27.43 million), which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$440.04 million
(2021: HK$521.00 million). All of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Included in bank and other borrowings was default
payment for other borrowing of approximately HK$317.28
million (2021: HK$236.1 million). The Company keeps
negotiating with creditors of other borrowings for extension
of repayment period.

The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt) was 53.44% (31 December 2021:
46.16%). The ratio was at reasonably adequate level as at
31 December 2022. Having considered the Group’s various
measures, arrangements and current unpledged cash and
cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, banking
facilities, possible fund raising and the business operation
income, the management believes that the Group’s financial
resources are sufficient for its day-to-day operations. The
Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the Year.

The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, investment properties with fair
value of approximately HK$300.19 million (2021: HK$328.92
million) and personal guarantee by shareholder of the
Company and related parties were secured to banks to secure
the Group's bank borrowings and bills payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R

The shares of two subsidiaries of the Company with net
assets of HK$26.39 million (2021: HK$30.61 million) as at
31 December 2022 were pledged for a secured bond since
August 2017. As the secured bond was maturated, the
bondholder has the right to take over the control of the
two subsidiaries. The Company is in negotiation with the
bondholder for extension of repayment of the bond and as at
the date of this report, the two subsidiaries are still under the
control of the Company.

LITIGATIONS

(i) HCA 1867 of 2015
On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued from the High Court of
Hong Kong (the “Writ”) relating to a claim by Mr.
Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former Director of the
Company. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu claims against
the Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000 being
damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal of the
issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company to him
upon his exercise of the share options. The trial was
heard before Judge from 8 December 2022 to 14
December 2022, and on 10 February 2023, it was
adjudicated by the Court that the Company shall pay
damages to the Plaintiff, assessed at HK$4,394,000,
and costs. The Company has decided to appeal against
the said judgment, and thus the Company filed a
Notice of Appeal on 6 March 2023.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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(i)

(iii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a writ
of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019) issued on
behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for an order to direct
the Company to deliver up the share certificate of
5,000,000 (Bonus) Shares issued in January 2016
and damages to be assessed. The said Gemini
Funds Limited has also taken out an application for
summary judgment against the Company returnable
before a Master of the High Court on 9 April 2020.
The legal representative of the Company filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 6 November 2019,
and the Company has filed a notice to the Court
to oppose the application by the said Plaintiff to
enter judgment against the Company. The hearing
was heard before a Judge on 21 January 2021 and
pursuant to the Judgement, the Company delivered up
the said share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a Notice
to Appeal on 18 February 2021.

HCMP 1296 of 2021
On 7 September 2021, the legal representatives of the
Company filed a Notice of Originating Summons to
the High Court (under HCMP 1296 of 2021) to apply
to the Court to dispute a Statutory Demand dated 12
August 2021 issued on behalf of Madam LIN TONG
() for the sum of HK$4,747,254.03. The case
has been adjourned sine die.

On the same subject matter, Madam LIN TONG (#k
) (“Madam Lin") through her legal representatives
in Cayman Islands issued a Statutory Demand on 28
October 2021 to the Company’s registered address in
the Cayman Islands. Then on 13 December 2021, a
winding up petition was issued out of the Grand Court
of the Cayman Islands and returnable on 3 March
2022, under which the said LIN TONG petitioned
to wind up the Company unless the amount
HK4,942,814.80 was paid. The Company then settled
the matter with the petitioner (Madam Lin), and
the winding up petition had been withdrawn by the
consent of the parties on or about 3 March 2022.

(i)

(iii)
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(iv)

(v)

HCCW 115 of 2022

On 25 April 2022, the Company received a petition
(“Madam Yan's Petition”) filed by Ms. Yan Huijuan
(“Madam Yan") for an order that the Company may
be wound up by the High Court pursuant to the
Ordinance. Madam Yan'’s Petition was filed against the
Company for being unable to repay a debt of amount
HK$5,251,773.03. Details of Madam Yan's Petition
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 April 2022. Madam Yan's Petition was heard
before a Judge on 12 December 2022 and the matter
was finally settled with the said Petition (Madam Yan's
Petition) formally dismissed.

(2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139, (2021) Su 0707
Minchu No. 7708, (2021) Su 07 Minzhong No.
1478 and (2022) Su 0706 Minchu No. 4506

On 31 August 2020, the Company's subsidiary,
Lianyungang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd. G&
ERESFERBEEAFMRAT) ("Huajin Huahong”)
received a civil ruling (REFHEE)issued on behalf
of Jiangsu Pinpai Real Estate Co., Ltd. CIL#RIKE ¥
BIRAF) (“Pinpai”) under (2021) Su 0707 Caibao
No. 139 ((2021)8k0707841R1395%) . According to the
civil ruling (REFHTESE), Pinpai being the plaintiff,
requested to freeze the bank accounts of Huajin
Huahong. In addition, according to the civil judgment
(RE#7R%) under (2021) Su 0707 Minchu
No. 7708 ((2021)80707E#]77085%), the court
ordered Huajin Huahong to pay RMB1,556,545.50
as service provider of advertising and promotion,
and e-commerce; and commission together with the
interest thereon to Pinpai. Huajin Huahong appealed
to the Lianyungang Intermediate Court for retrial
under (2021) Su 07 Minzhong No. 1478 ((2021)&k
07ER#81478%%) . According to the civil mediation (R
EH#EMAE) under (2022) Su 0706 Minchu No. 4506
((2022)#£0706 S #1)45065%) on 22 August 2022, the
parties agreed reached a full and final settlement by
paying RMB1,300,000 by Huajin Huahong to Pinpai.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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(vi)

(vii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(2022) Su 0706 Minchu No.4506

On 22 August 2022, the Company's subsidiary,
Lianyugang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd (BZ
BERERBFEEIRAT) received a civil judgement
(BR=E#HEZ)issued on behalf of Wang Pengcheng
(EBEF2) (“Wang”) under (2022) Su 0706 Minchu
No.4506 ((2022)&0706E #]45065%) . According
to the civil judgement (EEHETESE), Wang being
the plaintiff, request the repayment on the loan
principle in RMB5,000,000 and interest in 2% per
month. Jiangsu Province Lianyungang Shi Haizhiu
Qu Intermediate Court judged Lianyugang Huajin
Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd (EEBEZFEREX
BBR/AE) had to repayment the loan principle in
RMB5,000,000 and interest in four times for the Prime
rate of National Interbank Funding Center authorized
by People’s Bank of China.

(2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651, (2021) Yue 03
Minzhong No. 23004 and (2022) Yue Minshen No.
4179

On 26 May 2021, the Company’s subsidiary,
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Ltd.
("Green Food”) CRYIEATGHEBBREEZERA
B]) received a civil judgment (RZEH7RAE) issued on
behalf of Shenzhen Zhongdun United Investment
Technology Co., Ltd. (RIIFEBERZEFRA
&) ("Zhongdun”) under (2021) Yue 0304 Minchu
No. 13651 ((2021)E0304E#]136515%) . According
to the civil judgment (RE¥|7RZE), Zhongdun
being the plaintiff, requested to (i) cancellation of
contract no. 20200403-002 “Rice Sales Contract”;
(ii) return the contract deposit of RMB3,400,000
to Zhongdun; (iii) pay the interest of the above
deposit of RMB3,400,000; and (iv) bear all litigation
costs. The case has been appealed to the Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court of Guangdong Province
and on 25 October 2021, Green Food received a civil
judgment under (2021) Yue 03 Minzhong No. 23004
((2021)E203E 4£230045%) . According to the civil
judgment, (a) the issue in (i) above being upheld; (b)
the issue in (i) above being cancelled; (c) referring
to the issue in (ii) above, Green Food has to return
RMB760,000 together with interest to Zhongdun;
and (d) reject the issue in (iv) above. Green Food has
applied to the Higher People’s Court of Guangdong
Province for retrial on 8 April 2022 under (2022) Yue
Minshen No. 4179 ((2022) BE®H41795%) but the
appeal was dismissed by the Higher People’s Court of
Gunangdong Province on 12 July 2022.

(vi)

(vii)
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(viii) HCCW 3 of 2023

(ix)

(x)

On 9 January 2023, the Company received a petition
(“Mr. Zhang's Petition”) filed by Mr. Zhang Zhiguang
("Mr. Zhang"”) for an order that the Company may
be wound up by the High Court under the Ordinance
pursuant to a Statutory Demand (for being unable
to repay a debt of an amount of HK$7,197,841.10).
Details of Mr. Zhang's Petition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 January
2023. Mr. Zhang's Petition was heard before Master
on 15 March 2023 and was adjourned to 5 July 2023.

CACV 71 of 2023

On 6 March 2023, the Company filed a Notice of
Appeal to the Court to appeal against the Judgment
of HCA 1867 of 2015 that the quantum of damages
be HK$2,944,000.00 only.

HCCW 144 of 2023

On 30 March 2023, the Company received a
winding up petition filed by Mr. Qu Shuncai (under
HCCW 144 of 2023) for an order that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region pursuant to
the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong)
for being unable to pay a debt of an amount of
HK$4,291,684.55, being the Reduced Amount
together with its accrued interest of HK$1,347,684.55
as at 7 March 2023. The Petition will be heard on 7
June 2023 at 9:30 a.m. before the Companies Court.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 167
(2021: 178) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$109.27 million
(2021: HK$109.27 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. The
Company has adopted the share option scheme aiming to
provide incentives to participants for their contributions to
the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Possible Debt Restructuring

The Company is in light of the current liquidity constraints
and financial challenges of the Company, including the
Petition dated on 10 January 2023, 27 January 2023 and 15
March 2023, the Company has been working closely with
its professional advisers and is using its best endeavours
to explore various options available for restructuring the
Company's debts (the “Proposed Restructuring”), including
but not limited to the restructuring of debts by engaging
with its creditors, other stakeholders and potential investors
and by way of a scheme of arrangement in Hong Kong (the
“Scheme”). The Company will strive to engage in dialogues
with creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”) in order to
facilitate the implementation of a value preserving solution
with all relevant stakeholders.

The Company announced on 23 March 2023 that the
convening hearing in respect of the Scheme, at which an
order will be sought to convene the scheme meeting for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or
without modification) the Scheme, is scheduled to be heard
before the High Court on 16 June 2023 (Hong Kong time).

Entering Agreement with Investor for Proposed
Restructuring

On 29 March 2023, the Company and the investor which is
independent third party entered into the legally binding term
sheet in connection with a Proposed Restructuring.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions in Part
2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year
ended 31 December 2022, except where otherwise stated in
this report.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(@) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) provide the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their participation in Board meetings bring
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interests and management
process, to ensure that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. The independent non-executive directors
ensure that the Board accounts for the interests of all
shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2022, the Board comprised three executive
directors, namely Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman), Mr. Ke
Xionghan and Mr. Chen Chen; three non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Zhao Wanjiang (Vice-chairman), Ms. Ho Wing
Yan and Mr. Li Dawei; and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang
and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Biographical details of the directors
are set out on pages 42 to 44 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to (i)
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1); (ii) at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10(2); and (iii) the independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board of directors under
Rule 3.10A.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has put in place mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. This
is achieved by giving directors access to external independent
professional advice from legal advisers and auditor, as well
as their declaration of independence according to the Listing
Rules during the Year. The Board reviews the implementation
and effectiveness of the aforementioned mechanisms on an
annual basis.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 24 June 2016. The Chairman of
the Board provides leadership to the Board to ensure that
the Board works effectively and all important issues are
discussed and dealt with in a timely manner. During the
period from 1 January 2022 to 27 January 2022, Mr. Li
Jiehong was the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Jiang lJianjun
and Mr. Zhao Wanjiang were appointed as the Chairman
and the Vice-chairman of the Board respectively with effect
from 28 January 2022. The Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s structure as business continues
to grow and develop in order to assess whether any changes,
including the appointment of a chief executive officer, are
necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.
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In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting.
The non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are appointed for specific term ranging from two to
three years.

Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference of these
committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee since
2001. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group's financial statements, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were three
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditors the external audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the
Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii) discuss auditing
and financial reporting matters, including review of the
unaudited annual results and audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, and the unaudited
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2022 with recommendations to the Board for approval; (iii)
review the independence of the auditors; (iv) review and
make recommendations to the Board on the auditors’ re-
appointment and remuneration; and (v) review the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual director or any of his/
her associates is involved in decisions relating to his/her own
remuneration. The remuneration of directors is determined by
the Board by reference to his/her duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy and
the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation. In order to
align the interests of directors, employees and consultants
with the Group, share options may be granted to directors,
employees and consultants under the Company’s share
option scheme. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, namely Mr. Jiang Jianjun
and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa
is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were two
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; and
(ii) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the new directors.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 are disclosed in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment of directors and Board
succession with reference to the board diversity policy and
the nomination policy of the Company. Meetings of the
Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

Selection Criteria: Selection of candidates will be based on
the Company’s Nomination Policy as well as the following
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs
of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
The Board's composition will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time. It will discuss any revisions
to the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.
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Nomination Criteria: In assessing the suitability of the
candidate to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of any existing director(s), the Nomination
Committee will consider the following factors: the candidate’s
character, integrity and competent to act as director,
skills, knowledge, and experience in the commercial and
professional fields which are relevant to the principal business
of the Group, availability to devote time and attention to the
Board; and with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Procedures and Requirements: The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to invite nominations
of candidates from directors (if any) or it may also nominate
candidates for its consideration. The Nomination Committee
shall use adequate due diligence in making recommendation
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing
director(s) for the Board’s consideration and approval. The
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director should follow the
"Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy from time to time. It will discuss any
revisions to the Nomination Policy and make recommendation
to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.

At 31 December 2022, there was one female director (non-
executive director) and eight male directors (comprising three
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors), which was about 11%
female representation of the Board. The Board targets to
maintain at least the current level of female representation
and will continue to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s workforce (including
senior management) is more than 29% female, with no
senior management roles being held by women. The Board
considers that gender diversity is achieved in general. The
table below summarizes the share of women at different
position levels across the Group as at 31 December 2022.
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Level
#R A
Senior

Director Management Manager Employee
Gender ]l BEE SHREEAE FCg L 73=]
Male B4 8 3* 13 97
Female 7% 1 - 8 40
Note: The above data is calculated based on the number of total Mz MEEEBEDERAEREE-Z - F

employees of the Group as of 31 December 2022.

* The Senior Management of the Group comprises with all
executive directors.

At 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Jiang Jianjun, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa and Mr. Chen Zhifeng. Mr. Jiang Jianjun is the
chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were two
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors with
reference to the requirements under the Listing Rules; (iii)
nominate the retiring directors for re-election at the annual
general meeting held on 27 June 2022; (iv) review the Board
Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy; and (v) nominate
the proposed candidates for appointment to the Board and
Board committees.

The directors’ attendance at the above committees’ meetings
held in 2022 is set out in the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, there were ten Board meetings
held by the directors, four of which were regular Board
meetings to (i) review and discuss the matters relating to the
Group's development strategies, investment projects, business
operations and financial performance, and (ii) approve the
annual results for 2021 and the interim results for 2022.
The other six Board meetings were held to consider certain
ad hoc and other corporate matters. Under code provision
C.5.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the Year, certain regular Board
meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
enable the directors to react timely and make expeditious
decisions in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group's business. As a result, the aforesaid regular
Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than
required with no objection by the directors. The Board will do
its endeavours to meet the requirement of this code provision
in future. In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman of
the Board met with the independent non-executive directors
without the presence of other directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Minutes of meetings of the Board
and Board committees with appropriate details are available
to all directors for inspection. Draft minutes are circulated to
all directors for comment and approval after the Board and
committee meetings.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisers if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in a
physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.
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Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board ERHFEREBEE_Z__#+-_8A=+—H
committees meetings and general meetings held during the IFEERTEEZCEE EXLETDE
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out as follows: REEEREAGZEREINUWT :
Attendance/Eligible to attend
HERY AEREERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings®
Name of directors EEfL EXEEE BRZEEE8E FWZEEEE RAZEEE: BRRAEC
Executive Directors HiTEZE
M. Jiang Jianjun® TRELLY 9/9 - 11 11 0/1
Mr. Ke Xionghan RIS ELE 10/10 - - - 0/2*
Mr. Chen Chen REXE 6/10 - - - 072
M. Li Jiehong® EB L 1”1 - 1”1 " o
Mr. Zeng Jixiang® BEHLEY on - - - 0N
Mr. Yu Zicong® RTEzEe on - - - on
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang® HETT LD 19 - - - 0N
Ms. Ho Wing Yan MM Z £ 10/10 - - = 02
Mr. Li Dawei® FARREY 119 - - - 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors — BUHHTEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RERELSE 910 33 22 22 0/2*
Mr. Yang Yunguang BENREE 910 23 - - 02
Mr. Chen Zhifeng R 910 33 20 w0 02!
- The director is not a committee member. - ZESNIIFEEENE

EEFBRETHRRCHER_E--F—H8
+tBRTHREEFNRE -
58 EEEBRETRECHERZIZEZIZFRA
THTHBRITHREBFEAG

# The director attended the extraordinary general meeting held i
on 17 January 2022 by electronic means.

*: The director attended the annual general meeting held on 27
June 2022 by electronic means.

1R A R RS TRABA  BEE IR AT
EEBETREUERTACITHALH
HEER o

(a) According to the Company’s articles of association, there is (a)
no provision to provide that attendance by the director at
a general meeting by electronic means may be counted as
physical attendance.
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(b) Mr. Jiang Jianjun was appointed as an executive director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(0 Mr. Li Jiehong resigned as an executive director and ceased
to be the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 28 January
2022.

(d) Mr. Zeng Jixiang resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(e) Mr. Yu Zicong resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(f) Mr. Zhao Wanjiang was appointed as a non-executive
director and the Vice-chairman of the Board of the Company
with effect from 28 January 2022.

(9) Mr. Li Dawei was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
Mr. Jiang lJianjun, the Chairman of the Board, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 June 2022 in person due to government measures on
travel restrictions caused by COVID-19 outbreak.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed directors have been provided with an
induction on their appointment to the Board so as to ensure
that each of them has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that they are
fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has provided relevant
materials published by professional bodies or regulators to
the directors to keep them abreast of the latest development
of legal, regulatory and corporate governance. The Company
has also devised a training record in order to assist the
directors to record the training they have undertaken and
they are requested to provide a training record to the
Company.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31
December 2022 is summarized as follows:
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Attending seminars/
conferences/courses/
readings relevant to
the business,
corporate governance
or directors’ duties

SEBRERE-
THEEAREEREZ
g g
Name of directors EEy REREARAMR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun® IRELRE v
Mr. Ke Xionghan R T E v
Mr. Chen Chen RESTE v
Mr. Li Jiehong® IR STED
Mr. Zeng Jixiang®© BEFmEe
Mr. Yu Zicong® RFHRELFO
Non-executive Directors FFPITESE
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang® eI L v
Ms. Ho Wing Yan CE/qnn v
Mr. Li Dawei® FERERED v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFPITEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa SRRESLE 4
Mr. Yang Yunguang b rpie v
Mr. Chen Zhifeng FRES #2500 v
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Notes:

(a) Mr. Jiang Jianjun was appointed as an executive director,
the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(b) Mr. Li Jiehong resigned as an executive director and ceased
to be the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 28 January
2022.

(©) Mr. Zeng Jixiang resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(d) Mr. Yu Zicong resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

(e) Mr. Zhao Wanjiang was appointed as a non-executive
director and the Vice-chairman of the Board of the Company
with effect from 28 January 2022.

(f) Mr. Li Dawei was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 28 January 2022.

Under code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
The Company did not receive the training record for the year
ended 31 December 2022 from Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Zeng
Jixiang and Mr. Yu Zicong, all of them resigned on 28 January
2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code"”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all existing directors, the Company confirms that the directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
directors also acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The Group had defaulted in
repayments of its debts, including: i) default in repayment
of principal amount of secured bonds of HK$109,000,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$78,969,000 (the
"Defaulted Secured Bonds”); ii) default in repayment of
principal amount of unsecured bonds of HK$250,414,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$62,295,000
(the “Default Unsecured Bonds”), of which a holder claims
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$11,489,526
including interest thereon, has filed a petition against
the Company; iii) other loans of principal amount of
HK$16,676,000 and interest thereon of approximately
HK$782,000 (the “Defaulted Other Loans”); and iv) default
in settlement of construction payables which, including
additional penalties thereon, amounted to approximately
HK$95,997,000 (the “Defaulted Construction Payables”), in
respect of which the Group had received a notice from the
contractor of the event of default and demand for payment.
In addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured Bonds and
Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately HK$63,954,000
as at 31 December 2022 which were due for repayment
or renewal in the next twelve months after 31 December
2022 and incurred a loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 of approximately HK$222,399,000 These events or
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note
2.2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Save for
disclosed above, for the purpose of the Company’s financial
year ended 31 December 2022, the Board was not aware
of any other events or conditions that might cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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In the light of the following various measures or
arrangements to improve the working capital and liquidity
and cash flow position of the Group together with the
expected results of the other measures, including:

(a)

(e)

Management is endeavoring to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows through various
cost control measures and will focus on the existing
business;

The Group is negotiating with its secured and
unsecured bondholders to extend the repayment dates
for the principal and the interests amounts of the
Defaulted Secured Bond and the Defaulted Unsecured
Bonds. In the opinion of the Directors, the majority
of the holders of the Default Secured Bond and the
Default Unsecured Bond will not proceed with legal
actions against the Group and instead will agree upon
new repayment terms to be agreed between the
Group and the secured bondholder and the unsecured
bondholders;

The Group may consider to dispose non-financial
assets or properties if required,;

A substantial shareholder of the Company has agreed
to continuously provide financial support for the
continuing operations of the Company so as to enable
it to meet its liabilities when they fall due and carry
on its business without a significant curtailment of
operations in the twelve months from the date of
approval of consolidated financial statement; and

The Company is negotiating with investors for
obtaining further financing when necessary including
but not limited to equity financing, bank borrowing
and issuance of new convertible bonds to improve the
liquidity of the Group.

the directors are of the view that the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its current requirements and it
is reasonable to expect the Group to remain a commercially
viable concern. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on page 62 of this annual report.

Management’s position and basis on the going concern
assumption, and its view on the Disclaimer

As detailed in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Note
2.2"), conditions existed as at 31 December 2022 indicating
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt regarding the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. In view of such circumstances, the
management of the Group (the “Management”) has given
careful consideration to Group's current liquidity, performance
and available sources of financing in considering the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The Management has
also taken or will continue to implement the measures as
further detailed in Note 2.2 to mitigate the Group’s liquidity
pressure and to improve the conditions of cash flow. Taking
into account the successful and continued implementation of
such measures, the Management and also the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient working capital
for a period of not less than 12 months from 31 December
2022, and hence it is appropriate to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
The Management and Directors are of the view that the
Group will, based on the action plan devised, have sufficient
cash resources to satisfy future working capital and other
financing requirements as and when they fall due for the
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2022.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends
on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to
multiple uncertainties, including: i) defaulted in repayment
of principal amount of secured bonds of HK$109,000,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$78,969,000 (the
“Defaulted Secured Bonds”); ii) defaulted in repayment of
principal amount of unsecured bonds of HK$250,414,000
and interests thereon of approximately HK$62,295,000 (the
“Default Unsecured Bonds”), of which a holder claims the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$7,197,841 including
interest thereon, has filed a petition against the Company;
iii) other loans of principal amount of HK$16,676,000
and interest thereon of approximately HK$782,000 (the
“Defaulted Other Loans"”); and iv) defaulted in settlement of
construction payables which, including additional penalties
thereon, amounted to approximately HK$95,997,000 (the
"Defaulted Construction Payables”), in respect of which the
Group had received a notice from the contractor of the event
of default and demand for payment. In addition, the Group
had outstanding bank and other borrowings other than the
Defaulted Secured Bonds and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds
of approximately HK$63,954,000 as at 31 December 2021
which were due for repayment or renewal in the next twelve
months after 31 December 2021.

The Audit Committee after considering all factors above
concurs with the Management and the Board on preparation
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of
the measures under management’s assumptions, which
are subject to multiple uncertainties. In all other respects,
in the opinion of the Auditor, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Action plan to address the Disclaimer
Details of the action plan of the Group to address the
Disclaimer

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast
doubt regarding the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, and with a view to removing the Disclaimer, the
Company had taken and intends to continue to implement
the measures as further detailed in Note 2.2 to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its cash flows, including:

HEIEREERAERFELEERNELS
EBNAEERER  UAFIGEEZRTER &
AFEHRNMIL A SHREEIEN 52 2PN 55138
i LURE R B E BRI RAEERERE
B

7) Existing business 1) HEER
Management is endeavoring to improve the Group's EEEERNNEBEZEBERAEGE
operating results and cash flows through various MiRAAEENKEXERRAERE
cost control measures and will focus on the existing BBFEINIREER-
business.

2)  Financial support 2) HIEEE
A substantial shareholder of the Company has agreed KRB —HFTERREAREERR
to continuously provide financial support for the SEEZHEEEREMBERE KM
continuing operations of the Group so as to enable HoEE2HIPaErHEREER
it to meet its liabilities when they fall due and carry MmEFEMERSHMBRERZ Bt
on its business without a significant curtailment of + B A NKIBAERZETS
operations in the twelve months from the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements.

3) New funding 3) LG E
The Company is negotiating with investors with a view KRB ERBRBAKEEREUTHE
to obtain further financing when necessary including RIERCE— P M E » BIE BRI R
but not limited to equity financing, bank borrowing MENRITEEREITMIBRKRES
and issuance of new convertible bonds to improve the M EREERENE
liquidity of the Group.

4)  Appointing of financial advisers in Hong Kong 4)  ZEEZEHMEEER

The Company has been working closely with its
professional advisers and is using its best endeavours
to explore various options available for restructuring
the Company's debts (the “Proposed Restructuring”),
including but not limited to the restructuring of debts
by engaging with its creditors, other stakeholders
and potential investors and by way of a scheme of
arrangement in Hong Kong (the “Scheme”). The
Company will strive to engage in dialogues with
creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”) in order
to facilitate the implementation of a value preserving
solution with all relevant stakeholders.
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The Company announced that the convening hearing
in respect of the Scheme, at which an order will
be sought to convene the scheme meeting for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving
(with or without modification) the Scheme, is
scheduled to be heard before the High Court on 16
June 2023 (Hong Kong time)

5) Entering agreement with investor for proposed
restructuring
On 29 March 2023, the Company and the investor
which is independent third party entered into the
legally binding term sheet in connection with a
Proposed Restructuring.

The Management and Directors believe that the current
action plans are the most commercially practicable plans and
measures in addressing the Group’s liquidity matters and
going concern. The Management and the Directors will focus
on the current action plans and the implementation thereof,
while keeping viable options open as they continue their
efforts in addressing the going concern issue and Disclaimer.

Impact of the Disclaimer on the Company’s financial
position

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as
a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Audit committee’s view on the Disclaimer

The audit committee of the Company (the "“Audit
Committee”) had critically reviewed the Disclaimer and also
the management’s position and action plan of the Group to
address the Disclaimer. The Audit Committee is in agreement
with the Management with respect to the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and in particular the actions
or measures to be implemented by the Management of the
Group with a view to remove the disclaimer of opinion in
2022 financial statements.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

REBEM BN B Z=F/XF
NB EABARRB) £eF AR &
FECEH > RECER =R en < AR5t
FOUBRTHBEHRE FTHRESDS

it El.

D

o b
>

I8 0

~ o

=]

=
W)
il

5 REAEAEREETLE

RZE-_=F=B-+hNH xA FH
KEE (ABIE=1) tEZEHR]
TEERHNERINKRERRE

EEEKREFHGE BRHERMITHAEZH
AREEBRDESRFECEHNERAEDXE
AT B RER - EEEMNEFHE L
RERNTHFIRABN RRKRE T
WER BESHRAFECSHENEZE
KTERIEE-

BEARTERBESARAMBRANTE

M ANEBAIEEIR Eict 8 K385 > BIAT5E
BAAFELENER F#EEE  WAE
HRBEUFAEENEERTDEERRER
AR EIEEE stHIRA e E— P EEN B EE
H RAREERBHEERERBBEEND
HATHEENRBEG ZEABNEE
HMARMRBE_E__4+_-_A=+—H
It FENGEMBRRSP

BERZEGHEBEEARTERNRR
rpREEREZER® (BEREET)) BBEE
REERTERUNREEENIGRAER
BEREZRTERNITHHAE -BEREES
REAEEEHAERFESER UAF
MEAEEEEBEAN ST - _FMHBRE
AR T ERMEB IR T8I R 3T



Removal of Disclaimer

Based on the Company’s discussion with the Auditor, as the
Disclaimer relates to a going concern issue, in preparing the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2022,
the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and the appropriateness
of preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis, based on the conditions and
circumstances as at 31 December 2022. In accordance with
the Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, sufficient appropriate
audit evidence should be made available regarding the
appropriateness of the Management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, so that to enable the Auditor
to conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
multiple uncertainties exist regarding the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Management's assessment of the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern as at 31 December 2022
should be based on the conditions and circumstances as at
31 December 2022 and cash flow projections covering a
period of not less than 12 months from 31 December 2022.
As such, the Auditor is unable to ascertain whether the
Disclaimer can be removed for the next financial year at this
stage.

Assuming all the above plans or actions can be completed
as planned and no new circumstances and conditions have
occurred, subject to satisfactory completion of review of the
Management's assessment of the Group’s going concern,
together with sufficient and appropriate evidence, the
Disclaimer may be removed in connection with the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ending 31 December 2023.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, in respect of their audit services provided to the
Group was HK$1,400,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Obijectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems at least annually, and such review should
cover all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance control, as well as the process for the
identification, evaluation and management of significant
risks (including ESG risks) faced by the Group; ensuring the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget for the Group's accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well
as those relating to the Company's ESG performance
and reporting; and considering major findings on risk
management and internal control matters, and reports and
makes recommendations to the Board.
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The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and considers them
effective and adequate, save that the Company has not had
a Financial Controller in overseeing the Group’s finance and
accounting function since September 2022. The Company
has been proactively identifying the candidate with the right
qualification and experience for appointment as the Financial
Controller of the Group.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board’s responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

° Risk mitigation — senior management may implement
a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or the severity of the risk to an
acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.
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The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has a set of procedures
and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information relating to the Group. All Board members and
senior management, who are likely to possess the Group’s
inside information because of their offices or employments
in the Group, are required to follow the guidelines of the
code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished
inside information strictly confidential.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider and his primary
corporate contact persons at the Company during the Year
were Mr. Kwan Yiu Ming Patrick, the Financial Controller of
the Company (from 1 January 2022 to 16 September 2022)
and Mr. Chan Siu Fung, the Vice General Manager of the
Company (from 17 September 2022 to 31 December 2022).
For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric has complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the issuer
should have a policy on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report. As the Company is still in its
development phase and the performance will continue to
be impacted by the relevant industry and economic outlook
in the foreseeable future, the Board is of the opinion that it
is not appropriate to adopt a dividend policy at this stage.
The Board will review the Company’s status periodically and
consider to adopt a dividend policy if and when appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company's articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or
the registered office of the Company at P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands for the
attention of the Board or Company Secretary to convene an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address : Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube,
8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax © (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders
and the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. All
the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of
20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll
under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures
and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are explained
by the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All
resolutions proposed at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders’ communication policy including steps
taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries
received (if any) and the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, and considered that the policy has
been properly implemented during the Year and is effective.
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The directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. JIANG Jianjun, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board in
January 2022. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Jiang was the executive director of the
Company for the period from March 2013 to August 2019,
the Chairman of the Board for the period from May 2013
to December 2018, the managing director of the Company
for the period from May 2013 to March 2014 and a
consultant of the Group for the period from August 2019 to
January 2022. He has been engaged in property investment
and management since 1995. He also has experience in
distribution of wine and liquor.

Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 58, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ke graduated
from the Department of Law of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology. He is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (IR KBEZRH
B ARAF), a company mainly engaged in the import
and export business of electronic products and mineral
products. Mr. Ke was the general manager of Indonesia
Huaming Yang International Trading Company* (ENJE ZBE[5
EIPR & 5 /A E)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang
Branch for over 20 years, during which period, he served as
the section chief of Retail Business Department, Company
Business Department and Credit Management Department as
well as the president of the sub-branch.

Mr. CHEN Chen, aged 23, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in September 2021. He graduated
from Wuhan Sports University (E0;£88 B 2 5%) majoring in
sport training. Mr. Chen is currently working in Dongguan
Junjing Hardware Products Company Limited* GRET S
AEREBERAF).

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang, aged 45, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company and the Vice-chairman of
the Board in January 2022. He is currently the department
head of Human Resources of Beidahuang Trading Group Co.,
Limited* Qb AT BEBBRABEEE (A7) #EK) and
a director of Beidahuang Business Group (HK) International
Trade Co., Limited (“Beidahuang HK"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 41, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong (currently known as Hong Kong Metropolitan
University). Ms. Ho is an Associate Member of both The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (“HKCGI") and
The Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a holder
of the Practitioner’s Endorsement issued by HKCGI. Ms.
Ho is a director of BMI Listed Corporate Services Limited
and is responsible for managing the business operations of
the company secretarial and administrative services for the
reputable listed groups in various industries. She has extensive
experience in a diversified range of professional corporate
services for Hong Kong and offshore companies from various
business sectors. Ms. Ho particularly specializes in corporate
governance advisory, corporate restructuring, corporate
financing and directors’ professional development with
emphasis on listed companies and she continues to advise
on these matters on a consultancy basis. Ms. Ho actively
participates in the formulation and execution of strategy at
the companies. She has been providing practical professional
services to companies listed on the Main Board and the GEM
of the Stock Exchange for over 15 years.

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. LI Dawei, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in January 2022. He graduated from
Mineral Processing and Utilization Engineering Department of
Coal Chemical Technology, Heilongjiang Mining Institute (£
B IBEERBYNMIANAIRRZBELEIIEER). Mr
Li is a senior accountant. He is currently the general manager
of Tianjin Dahuang Electronic Commerce Co., Limited* (<
BATMBTFEFBEMRAT)and a senior management of the
member companies of Beidahuang HK.

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chong holds a
bachelor degree of management with honours from the
University of Science, Malaysia. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the accounting and finance area servicing
private and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong and the
Southern Asia region. Mr. Chong was an independent non-
executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings
Group Limited from March 2021 to October 2022, the shares
of which were delisted on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 16 December 2022. He was an
executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
from October 2020 to April 2021, the shares of which are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. YANG Yunguang, aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July
2018. He holds a Master's Degree in National Economics
from Northwest University. Mr. Yang has served as senior
management positions of insurance companies in the PRC
since 1989. He has over 30 years of experience in the
financial industry and corporate management.

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
May 2021. He graduated from Zhanjiang Ocean University
(currently known as Guangdong Ocean University) majoring
in Business English. Mr. Chen is currently a manager of
Shenzhen Qianhai Badi Industrial Company Limited* CEIII T
B8\ M BB /AT]). He has over 8 years of experience
in property leasing and management in the PRC.

*  For identification purposes only
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 63 to
223.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 224. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 15 of
this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on page 4 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$Nil, representing
the share premium account of the Company of approximately
HK$1,663.46 million less the accumulated losses as at 31
December 2022 of approximately HK$1,984.55 million.
Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands (as
amended), the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 7% of the total sales and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 24% of the Group’s
total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted to
approximately 15% of the total purchases and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 39.74% of the Group’s
total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. JIJANG Jianjun (Chairman) — (appointed on 28 January 2022)
Mr. KE Xionghan

Mr. CHEN Chen

Mr. LI Jiehong (Chairman) (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Mr. ZENG lJixiang (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Mr. YU Zicong (resigned on 28 January 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Wanjiang
(Vice-chairman)

Ms. HO Wing Yan

Mr. LI Dawei

(appointed on 28 January 2022)

(appointed on 28 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. CHEN Zhifeng

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chong Cha Hwa, Mr. Yang Yunguang and
Mr. Chen Zhifeng will retire by rotation and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 42 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:
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EENRM AR S

N _E_ —F+_"_BA=+—H FBEFNXE
NEINEMBEER (EXRBSFRPERAE
XVEB) Z B 1n ~ HBRARD BB R 0
BN IRIERE S MG RAIE352FRERAE
BYREZERAM WiRE - HRAMER
TP EmBETAESETHESIZNEE
FR) (M2#<rR)) BRITHEAR B KB
FrzmR X .

RERBEBRZEFR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Name of directors Capacity and nature of interest shares held  issued shares
2 VNG|
B&1Tkinz
) B ktEZME HERMEE =g
Mr. Jiang Jianjun Beneficial owner 456,173,182 7.23%
IEELRE BmEAA
Interest of spouse (Note) 3,800,000 0.06%
Fefem (e
Mr. Ke Xionghan Beneficial owner 10,120,000 0.16%
1 1 3 5 A BE@m#EBA
Mr. Chen Zhifeng Beneficial owner 900,000 0.01%
RE#EE BE@m#EBA
Mr. Yang Yunguang Beneficial owner 900,000 0.01%
ZEYwird BE@EBA
Mr. Li Dawei Beneficial owner 40,000 0.00%
FRERE BE@EBA
Note: These 3,800,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the MisE © 5%53,800,00008 05 BT EE ok 2 Fo @

spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun.
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Long position in share options of the Company:

REQFERIEZER:

Number of share
options directly

beneficially

owned

HEEmBERZ

Name of directors EEH4 s E
Ms. Ho Wing Yan sk iR % & 900,000
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRESRE 900,000
1,800,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following interests in shares
of 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Long position:
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s

Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held  issued shares
2 VNG|
BETRIRZ
e, 4t S kERNE FRERHHUB BAEat
Beidahuang Business Group (HK) Beneficial owner 660,000,000 10.45%
International Trade Co., Limited
(formerly known as Beidahuang (HK)
International Trade Co., Limited)
("Beidahuang HK")
LTATRHEER (&8 BREZERAT Ban#EEA
(RITBILASE (B8 BREZERAHE)
(MEAFEH))
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000¢ 10.45%
Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd*
(“Beidahuang Business Group”)
BRIRELATHEERERERLH SREREE RS
(MEARHEER))
Beidahuang Agribusiness Group Co., Ltd* Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000¢ 10.45%
(formerly known as Heilongjiang Beidahuang
Agribusiness Group Corporation*)
("Beidahuang Group”)
TAFRREERABRAR FIRERILA REREERT
REERBAT) (EATER)
Li Zhuoxun Interest of spouse 456,173,182 7.23%
ReH) Fofdinm
Beneficial owner 3,800,000 0.06%
BERH#BA

*  For identification purposes only

* EH#E
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Notes:

(a) These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang HK,
which was wholly owned by Beidahuang Business Group
which in turn was wholly owned by Beidahuang Group.
Accordingly, each of Beidahuang Business Group and
Beidahuang Group was deemed to be interested in the
660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang HK by virtue of the
SFO.

(b) Ms. Li Zhuoxun is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Mr. Jiang Jianjun by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2017
Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June 2017
(the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is
to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Group. The 2017 Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
the Adoption Date. Further details of the 2017 Scheme are
disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
June 2022, the scheme mandate limit for the 2017 Scheme
was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
to allow the Company to grant share options entitling
holders thereof to subscribe for up to 622,512,568 shares,
representing approximately 9.83% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report. Such limit together
with 418,700,000 outstanding share options previously
granted, the total number of shares available for issue under
the 2017 Scheme is 1,041,212,568 shares, representing
approximately 16.45% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report which does not exceed the 30%
limit.

At the abovementioned annual general meeting, the
then shareholders also approved the imposition of vesting
condition to 397,000,000 share options granted to 54
consultants (the “Consultants”) on 11 June 2021. The
vesting condition has to be satisfied before the Consultants
can exercise their share options. The Board is of the view that
the imposition of the vesting condition can serve the purpose
of the 2017 Scheme. Up to the date of this report, the
vesting condition has yet been satisfied. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
27 May 2021, 11 June 2021 and 25 February 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated 26 May 2022.

During the Year, 88,240,400 share options were exercised,
2,700,000 share options were lapsed and no share options
were granted or cancelled under the 2017 Scheme.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

TEREBFATATRBE-_ZT-—LFHEK

share options granted under the 2017 Scheme during the 2 B ES) .
Year:
Number of share options
fEREHE
Exercise
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At price
Name or category of 1 January during during during  during the 31 December Date of grant of  Exercise period of of share
participants 2022 the Year the Year the Year Year 2022 share options share options options®
”®
N k- St
k- e +=B ki
SHEHLAER —B—8 EREH FRITHE FREEH ERXH =+-H BREEHMAN  BRETEDS frfEEe
HK$
per share
SRET
Directors
-
Mr. Ke Xionghan 4,060,000 - (4,060,000) = S S 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
gL
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 900,000 - - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
[BE7S e
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 900,000 - - - - 900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
RRERLE
Mr. Yang Yunguang 900,000 - (900,000) = S S 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
Mr. Chen Zhifeng 900,000 - (900,000) - - - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
REHREL
7,660,000 - (5,860,000) - - 1,800,000
Ex-directors®
HEZY
Mr. Li Jiehong 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
THEREE
Mr. Zeng lixiang 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
BEHEE
Mr. Yu Zicong 900,000 = = - (900,000) = 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
2,700,000 - - - (2,700,000) -
Other Employees
HittfeS
In aggregate 102,280,400 - (82,380,400) - - 19,900,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
st
Consultants
&
In aggregate 397,000,000 - - - - 397,000,000 11-06-21 11-06-21 - 10-06-24 0.1
&t
509,640,400 - (88,240,400) - (2,700,000) 418,700,000
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Notes:

(@) The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company’s share capital.

(b) Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Zeng Jixiang and Mr. Yu Zicong resigned
as executive directors of the Company with effect from 28
January 2022. According to the 2017 Scheme, the share
options granted to them may be exercised within three
months from their respective date of resignation.

(© The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options
were exercised during the Year was HK$0.113 per share.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's bank
loan of HK$20,944,000 and bills payables of HK$71,951,000
were guaranteed by the investment properties of the Group,
Mr. Jiang lJianjun (the director and substantial shareholder
of the Company as at 31 December 2022) and his wife and
related parties.

The personal guarantees made by Mr. Jiang Jianjun and his
wife and related parties as guarantors in favour of the Group
in the abovementioned bank loan constituted connected
transaction of the Company in the form of financial
assistance under the Listing Rules. According to Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules, such financial assistance received by the
Group is fully exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the directors consider
that it is conducted on normal commercial terms or better
and it is not secured by the assets of the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
During the year, there was no continuing connected
transactions of the Company subsisted.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements fell under the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2022, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the paragraph titled “Share Option
Scheme” on page 52 of this report, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Details of the discussion on the environmental policies and
performance of the Company are set out in the standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.
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The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and employees to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills which includes
seminars and workshops, updates on regulatory requirements
and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group also strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Jianjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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B st EHTA R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

To the shareholders of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
set out on pages 63 to 223, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of
the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In
all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern
basis

As stated in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2022, the Group had
defaulted in repayments of its debts, including: i) secured
bonds of principal amount of HK$109,000,000 and interests
thereon of approximately HK$78,969,000 (the “Defaulted
Secured Bonds”); ii) unsecured bonds of principal amount
of HK$250,414,000 and interests thereon of approximately
HK$62,295,000 (the “Default Unsecured Bonds”); iii) other
loans of principal amount of HK$16,676,000 and interest
thereon of approximately HK$782,000 (the “Defaulted
Other loans”); and iv) construction payables which, including
additional penalties thereon, amounted to approximately
HK$95,997,000 (the “Defaulted Construction Payables”),
in respect of which the Group had received a notice from
the contractor of the event of default and demand for
payment. In addition, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured
Bonds and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$63,954,000 as at 31 December 2022 which were due
for repayment in the next twelve months after 31 December
2022 and incurred a loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 of approximately HK$222,399,000. These events and
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 2.2,
indicate that material uncertainties existed as at 31 December
2022 that cast significant doubts on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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The Directors have assessed the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern and are undertaking measures to improve
the Group's liquidity and financial position and enable the
Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. These
plans for future actions in relation to the going concern
assessment, which are set out in Note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements, include: (i) management is endeavoring
to improve the Group's operating results and cash flows
through cost control measures and will focus on the existing
business of the Group; (ii) the Group is negotiating with
its secured, unsecured bondholders and other creditors
to extend the repayment dates for the principal and
interest amounts of the Defaulted Secured Bonds, the
Defaulted Unsecured Bonds, the Defaulted Other Loans
and the Defaulted Construction Payables; (iii) a substantial
shareholder of the Company has agreed to continuously
provide financial support for the continuing operations of
the Group so as to enable it to meet its liabilities when
they fall due and carry on its business without a significant
curtailment of its operations in the twelve months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements;
(iv) the Company is negotiating with investors with a view to
obtain further financing including but not limited to equity
financing, bank borrowings and issuance of new convertible
bonds to improve the liquidity of the Group; and (v) the
Company is in the process of the Scheme and Proposed
Restructuring.

The validity of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on going concern basis depends on the successful
eventual outcome of the above mentioned plans and
measures, which are inherently uncertain and as at the date
of this report cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty
and are still subject to multiple uncertainties, particularly in
respect of whether the Scheme and Proposed Restructuring
has completed.

Should the Group fail to achieve successful outcomes
from the above-mentioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their net
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that
may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.
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We have not been provided with sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
because of the lack of detailed analyses provided by
management in relation to its plans and measures for future
actions in its going concern assessment which take into
account the uncertainty of outcome of these plans and
measures and how variability in outcome would affect the
future cash flows of the Group. Any adjustments found to
be required may have consequential significant effects on
the consolidated net assets of the Group as at 31 December
2022 and the consolidated loss and other comprehensive
expense and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022, and the related elements and disclosures
thereof presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BAIZEET RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSA") issued by the HKICPA
and to issue an auditors’ report and solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
toward or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. However, because of the matters described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to form an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate number: P05029

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND ) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEnkAME2EBRATRR

Year ended 31 December 2022
BHETE T F+RA=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue WA 5 930,276 928,785
Cost of sales THE A (795,067) (767,708)
Gross profit EF 135,209 161,077
Other income, gains or losses HAam A~ Iz s 518 6 2,697 17,384
Selling and distribution expenses THE R IHFRS (22,924) (23,719)
Administrative expenses TR (92,196) (108,467)
Profit from operation el 22,786 46,275
Net allowance of expected credit losses FEBHR(S S k51834 $ 48 (40,351) (58,937)
Other operating expense H&EM= (38,903) (34,666)
Finance costs EEE= YN 8 (148,496) (101,839)
Share of loss of associates Dh S A B B8 (19,934) (20,963)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBABZ W 36 627
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8 7 (224,271) (170,130)
Taxation I8 11 1,872 (7,160)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBE (222,399) (177,290)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Efth2mE (i) /WA
ltems that may be reclassified HEBJEENDEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER
Release of exchange differences upon  HEM B A B R0
disposal of subsidiaries PE R = 2E 5,655 -
Exchange differences arising on MBE BN EHRIE AT
translation of foreign operations and ~ EL£Z EREEE
associates (117,283) 11,242
Total comprehensive expense FE2EMBAZERE
for the year (334,027) (166,048)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEaEnkEMEEBRARR

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_EZ_"HF+_A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b=t FET FET
Loss attributable to: T EIGEE
Owners of the Company KABEA A (218,450) (170,916)
Non-controlling interests R (3,949) (6,374)
(222,399) (177,290)
Total comprehensive expense TH L2 4258
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PN/NETEZ T DN (326,868) (160,251)
Non-controlling interests JEERG T (7,159) (5,797)
(334,027) (166,048)
LOSS PER SHARE BKREE 13
— Basic and diluted (in HK cents) — B EE GBIl (3.49) (2.75)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIk R
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment EN B 14 44,004 57,697
Investment properties KREME 15 412,381 454,913
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 16 96,522 667,407
Rental deposits paid BENHEEEE 18 - 4,298
Goodwill Gk 19 3,675 4,032
Other intangible assets HihwmiEEE 20 = -
Interests in associates N NI 21 204,738 284,605
761,320 1,472,952
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Inventories 75 22 149,351 97,000
Properties for sale HEYE 23 383,980 411,934
Trade receivables FEWE Z IR 24 145,567 136,689
Loan receivables EE = 17 199,358 290,171
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIEBE-EERK
receivables Hfh fEWRIE 25 290,518 443,872
Cash and cash equivalents REXRIREEEY 26 14,880 27,433
1,183,654 1,407,099
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables ENEZERARENRE 27 157,291 140,738
Other payables and accruals HihEIMIBERESTER 28 247,566 147,986
Contract liabilities aHnas 29 132,835 209,222
Bank and other borrowings BT REMES 30 440,044 520,999
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) A Bt 5 7R 18 41 691 14,940
Tax payable FE(S IR 5,461 8,825
Lease liabilities HEas 33 38,569 144,853
1,022,457 1,187,563
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 161,197 219,536
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERRBHER
LIABILITIES 922,517 1,692,488

PEIEAREREEZERARAR
2022 F3R

65



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBIRRER
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIERRIBEE 31 24,446 29,380
Lease liabilities HEEaRA 33 112,437 558,712
Total non-current liabilities EREEAEEE 136,883 588,092
Net assets BEEFE 785,634 1,104,396
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BATHEE ANEL#ED
of the Company
Share capital [N 34 631,337 622,513
Reserves = 170,475 506,167
801,812 1,128,680
Non-controlling interests FEFERR (16,178) (24,284)
Total equity W ABZE 785,634 1,104,396

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 223
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Jianjun TEE
Director EE

606 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

=) HE L 42y
EEEmEER
Year ended 31 December 2022

BEEZ_"HF+_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRE AE
Share Share Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
kR i
BEfTRE RiERER BRERE it 1 REGE 2iEE it iR [ 4t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FEn TR &7 TEn FEn FEn &7 TEn FiEn
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-£-HF-8H 622,513 1,669,298* - 728* (174,465)* (832,875)* 1,285,199 (14,526) 1,270,673
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - (170916) (170916) (6,374) (177,290)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ EEEMEEBRA
Exchange differences on translation BERIMEBRBEATELY
of foreign operations and associate ERER - - - - 10,665 - 10,665 577 11,42
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ EE2EMXHAE - - - - 10,665 (170,916) (160,251) (5,797) (166,048)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ¥ FFEAREEZRE - - - - - - - (3,961) (3.961)
Equity-settled share option arrangements ~ RIEE BBRERH 35 - - 3732 - - - 3732 - 3732
Transfer to accumulated losses upon RABRESIER
mature convertible bonds BREZZNEE 2 - - - (728) - 78 - - -
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-#+2A=1+-Bk
1 January 2022 “§_"%-F-H 622,513 1,669,298* 3,732* - (163,800)* (1,003,063)* 1,128,680 (24,284) 1,104,39
Loss for the year FEHE - - - = o (218,450) (218,450) (3,949) (222,399)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ EEEM2ERA
Release of exchange differences upon HENBATRADERZR
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 5,655 - 5,655 = 5,655
Exchange differences on translation BEENEBRBEATELZ
of foreign operations and associate ERER - - - - (114,073) - (114,073) (3210) (117,283)
Total comprehensive expense for the year EELERNAE - - - - (108,418) (218,450) (326,868) (7,159) (334,027)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 FFEEREEZ RS - - - - - = = (169) (169)
Lapse of share options BRERN 35 - - (99) - - 99 - - -
Exercise of share options TEERE 35 8,824 (5,839) (2,985) - - - - - -
Adjustment upon disposal of subsidiaries HERBATRNBE 36 - - - - - - - 15,434 15,434
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZA=1+-H 631,337 1,663,459* 648* = (272,218)* (1,221,414)% 801,812 (16,178) 785,634
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZEHBREEENEAUBERIRZE

of HK$170,475,000 (2021: HK$506,167,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

SR 170,475,00087 (2 - —4F
506,167,0005 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|_ = Eﬁﬁ 2118 E‘IEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE"Z_"F+_RA=+t—HILEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B3 FHET TFET
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM RETHFIFRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation PRIRAIE 1R (224,271) (170,130)
Adjustments for: LT A
Finance costs 1D %N 8 148,496 101,839
Share of loss of associates DEEE A BEE 19,934 20,963
Bank interest income IRITH] EUWA 6 (34) (55)
Interest income FEUWA 6 (2,087) (2,232)
Net allowance for expected credit B E ZERRIER 2
losses recognised for trade TEEREEEGERHE
receivables HRE 1,391 852
Net allowance for expected PhE M E W RIE
credit losses recognised/(reversal) R, (BE) =
for other receivables TRHAE BEE1E
B R EE 11,621 (41,631)
Net allowance for expected Etﬁ%”&%f?’ﬂ (#m)
credit losses (reversal)/recognised SR TAHRE ER1E
for loan receivables Téﬁfﬁ HEE (1,663) 91,242
Net allowance for expected credit MBS QB BRIER 2
losses recognised for advances to TRERE BB HE
associates TR EE 29,002 8,474
Impairment loss on FEREEERERSIE
right-of-use assets 16 38,614 1,187
Impairment loss on property,  ERY Y
plant and equipment RGBS 14 289 -
Impairment loss on goodwill e R ERE 19 - 33,479
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRATEZ
g 36 (627) -
Gain on disposal of right-of-use HEFRAEEE WS
assets = (3,401)
Depreciation of property, ME- BB RFZEITE
plant and equipment 14 12,449 11,764
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRARESEITE 16 152,474 140,821
Amortisation of other intangible Hthm A & iy
assets = 9,484
Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on LB E T REIR
investment properties NAERR ) 15 2,325 (9,866)
Share-based payments MUB1n = (I8 35 = 3,732
187,913 196,522

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& BE=
FEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2022

BEEZ_"HF+_A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FAT FET

Increase in properties for sale FEYEE (8,820) (110,323)
Increase in inventories FEIEm (44,670) (29,330)
Increase in trade receivables e B 5 AR FIE N (12,051) (35,539)
Decrease in prepayments, AMRIE-EER

deposits and other receivables LA 8 SRR T Rk 45,064 142,950
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables  FEWETURL,~ (3EH0) 68,005 (14,261)
Increase in trade payables FE & 5 BRFIE 0 43,429 83,020
Decrease in bills payable FET =R D (9,.217) (53,065)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HAERIE R

and accruals FESTERIE M, (R) 23,227 (24,242)
(Decrease)/increase in contract HH8E OfL) /18

liabilities (34,202) 19,690
Cash generated from operations KEERE 258,678 175,422
Tax paid BIRIE (13) (1,063)
Net cash generated from KEEBTE

operating activities & FRE 258,665 174,359
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING KREEBFARTRE

ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BUWERITH E 34 55
Purchases of property, BEYE -BENRE

plant and equipment (293) (5,390)
Net cash outflow from HENBABZIRE

disposal of subsidiaries TR ERE 36 (14,085) -
Net cash flows used in from investing & & EEFT A

activities RERE=F5m (14,344) (5,335)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

u7l' = Eﬁﬁ /)II.E‘IEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
BHETE T F+B=1+—HLEFE

2022 2021
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B s FAT TFET

CASH FLOWS USED IN RYE EBNFR A

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REReE
New bank and other borrowings MG IRIT REMEER 40,748 110,287
Dividends paid to non-controlling SN FIERETZRE

interests (169) (3,961)
Repayment of bank and BIERITRHEMEE

other borrowings (92,693) (98,855)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (167,735) (186,874)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 EX B &R IR{T1ER = 19,200
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  FE{IRAES /5 =018

related parties CRiZL) /180 (17,391) 13,160
Interest paid [=ENpAYSS (16,364) (13,021)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEBMARERE

activities FRE (253,604) (160,064)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERREEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRizL) /B hN$ER (9,283) 8,960
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERIREZFEY

at beginning of year 27,433 26,115
Effect of foreign exchange rate IMEEXRESEFH T EIREE

changes, net (3,270) (7,642)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRNREKRIATEED

AT END OF YEAR 14,880 27,433

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
is a public limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Jiang lJianjun,
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited,
and Ms. Li Zhuoxun are the beneficial owners of the
Company. The registered address of the Company
is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
45 to the financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
followings amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendment of ~ Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HKFRS 3
Amendment to  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16 beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to  Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a

HKAS 37 Contract
Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020
Accounting Merger Accounting for Common Control
Guidelines 5 Combination
(Revived)

2.1

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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2.1
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—F+ZHA=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatory
effective for the current year (continued)

The applications of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
(including the
October 2020
and February

Insurance Contracts'

2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
and HKAS 28 Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

HKAS 8
Amendments to  Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities Arising from a Single

Transaction’
Amendments to  Non-current liabilities with covenants?

HKAS 1

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
properties which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

2.1

2.2

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022

2T+ "BA=+—H
FERIEBMBREERN (I
ABMBREEN)) REBMER
HEAZETZ (8)
BEGERRERZHTEBEMFER
SR REBVMBERSENZ(ETE
(&)
! R-ZE-_=F—B—HHzE&MRKA

EERABERN -

2 REEEHHNZBRABNEERH
IR -

: RIZ_NMF-—A—ARNZEFHAR
BEEHEER -

KRR EFERFERMAEEMMEIE
AU BHRESERNREBHMBRES 2R
ZES AR BARRREAGHES
BB REMERTE-

FHEEMBRETDIBBEE B G
g ((EBGFAE)) B ZESR
MBREER (EBYHREEL)
(BEFMEEAMBREEN -FE
GEtER (BB ETER])) M) &
M - SR RE S HRERMS
EHAERARRETZEREMF
HZRE BIBBERRIFER - IL
S IR E M B R E ARG LET
RA (TEHRR) REBRBFRGIR
ERNBERIKEER

FGREMBRRDIZEERSEE
mE IEETYERSRERARZAN
BEFtE WM& BRI -

B A —RIETIHE RMRBAIN
BHRRER

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2022 FR

73



74

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A
1 o =

R #5 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the assets in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had defaulted
in repayments of its debts, including: i) secured
bonds of principal amount of HK$109,000,000 and
interests thereon of approximately HK$78,969,000
(the "“Defaulted Secured Bonds”); ii) unsecured
bonds of principal amount of HK$250,414,000 and
interests thereon of approximately HK$62,295,000
(the "Default Unsecured Bonds”); iii) other loans of
principal amount of HK$16,676,000 and interest
thereon of approximately HK$782,000 (the "Defaulted
Other loans”); and iv) construction payables which,
including additional penalties thereon, amounted
to approximately HK$95,997,000 (the “Defaulted
Construction Payables”), in respect of which the
Group had received a notice from the contractor of
the event of default and demand for payment. In
addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings other than the Defaulted Secured Bonds
and Defaulted Unsecured Bonds of approximately
HK$63,954,000 as at 31 December 2022 which
were due for repayment in the next twelve months
after 31 December 2022 and incurred a loss for the
year ended 31 December 2022 of approximately
HK$222,399,000.

However, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$14,880,000 as at 31
December 2022 and the financial resources available
to the Group as at 31 December 2022 may not be
sufficient to repay the Defaulted Secured Bonds, the
Defaulted Unsecured Bonds, the Defaulted Other
Loans and the Defaulted Construction Payables and
other liabilities of the Group.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

The events and conditions described above indicate
that material uncertainties existed that cast significant
doubts on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and therefore that the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. In the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity of
the Group. The Directors have adopted the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and are of the view
that the Group is able to continue as a going concern,
after taking into account the plans and measures
being implemented in order to improve the working
capital and liquidity and cash flow position of the
Group, as follows:

7) Existing business
Management is endeavoring to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures and will
focus on the existing business.

2) Financial support

A substantial shareholder of the Company
has agreed to continuously provide financial
support for the continuing operations of the
Group so as to enable it to meet its liabilities
when they fall due and carry on its business
without a significant curtailment of operations
in the twelve months from the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements.

3) New funding
The Company is negotiating with investors
with a view to obtain further financing when
necessary including but not limited to equity
financing, bank borrowing and issuance of new
convertible bonds to improve the liquidity of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

4)

Appointment of financial advisers in Hong
Kong

In November 2022 and March 2023, the
Company engaged two independent
professional advisers to assist the Company
in negotiating with the creditors of the
Company, assessing the financial position
of the Group and formulating a holistic
proposal (the “Proposal”) with the creditors,
containing proposals targeted to improve the
Group’s liquidity and financial position such
as revised repayment schedule, finance cost
saving measures and/or re-financing by new
or renewed loans and/or equity. It is currently
expected that the Proposal negotiations
with the Company's creditors will be held
within half year from the date of this report
and subject to the initial feedback of the
creditors, be submitted to the Court having
jurisdiction (where applicable), shareholders
and creditors’ approval in the second half of
2023. In particular, the Company has been in
ongoing negotiation with representatives of
the bondholders in default and is cautiously
optimistic with the outcome of such
negotiations and proposals. If the Company
succeeds in such negotiations and proposals, it
is hoped that the Company’s creditors should
be prepared to withhold or postpone the
demand of immediate payment and/or the
taking of legal actions against the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

5) Entering agreement with investor for proposed
restructuring
On 29 March 2023, the Company and the
investor which is independent third party
entered into the legally binding term sheet
("Term Sheet”) in connection with a proposed
restructuring (the “Proposed Restructuring”),
including but not limited to restructure the
Group's debt by initiating a credit scheme with
the Group's creditors.

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the various
measures or arrangements being implemented during
and after the end of the reporting period together
with the expected results of the other measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital for its
current requirements and it is reasonable to expect
the Group to remain a commercially viable concern.
Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

However, the validity of the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis depends on the successful eventual outcome of
the above mentioned plans and measures, which are
inherently uncertain and as at the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements cannot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty and are still
subject to multiple uncertainties. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any future liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group's voting rights in an investee are sufficient
to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in
June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed
in a business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangement of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continueq)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates is described below.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the
portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate that has not been classified as held for
sale continues to be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests, that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the
relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal,
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

and is determined for an

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 23 FEGHBREE @
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued) RAHE TS (48

(b)  (continued) by &

(i) the entity and the Group are joint (i) =ZEREAEEAHERBE
ventures of the same third party; =N EETE,

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third vy —RBERAE=1ER
entity and the other entity is an associate NEeEtE Mr—25
of the third entity; ARZBEZFERNEEA

gl ;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ZERANERDEAKE
plan for the benefit of employees of BEERENELEAREERETF
either the Group or an entity related to BB AKENETE
the Group;

(vij  the entity is controlled or jointly (Vi) ZBRES@FTIEMEAES
controlled by a person identified in (a); o T [E 34

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) @OFTIEE A ZERT
influence over the entity or is a member FEAFEHYNAZLEE
of the key management personnel of the (HZEERF AT T E
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and S ABHhED -2

B, &

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group (viiy ZEBRENHFIBEBRNE
of which it is a part, provides key CIA=UNCIEE =15
management personnel services to the EEFATRETESEE
Group or to the Group's parent. NBRRF o

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2022 FR

93



94

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
)07 O = |

31 Dec

= _

2.3

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2022

——F+”"A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 33%

10%-25%

10%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Infrastructure and building

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with definite useful lives are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
30 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Contracts

Contracts are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over 5
years.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is a contract contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight— line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an

index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,

if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date
at amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in
the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective lease. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration under the contract to each
component. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of rentals.

(i) Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to
an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivable arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL") are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
deposit and other receivables, advances to associates,
pledged bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credlit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group'’s
trade receivable, loan receivables, advances to
associates and deposit and other receivables)
are each assessed as a separate group. Loans
to related parties are assessed for ECL on an
individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, convertible bonds,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities
and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined
on the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties for sale

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net-
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalized. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit
before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sales, except for freehold land, which
is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognizes the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income, gains or
losses”.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied,
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

i.e. when

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9.
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

In contrast, a receivable

A contract liability represents the group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer. A contract
asset and a contract liability relating to same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Revenue from the sale of wine and liquor, trading of
food products and mineral products are recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the products.

Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterpart renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Shore term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. For
properties under development for which revenue is
recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalize
borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready for
the Group's intended sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statement, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of exchange reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributable to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit of loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2.3, management
is required to make judgments,
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

estimates and

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimation of expected credit losses of trade
receivables, advances to associates, loan and other
receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Estimated net realisable value on properties for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties for sale, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment
and the estimated net realisable value (i.e. the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale).
An allowance is made if the estimated or actual
net realisable value of the properties for sale is
less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material provision for impairment
losses may result. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of the properties under development
is HK$383,980,000 (2021: HK$411,934,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have determined that
all of the Group’'s investment properties as at 31
December 2022 amounting to HK$412,381,000
(2021: HK$454,913,000) situated in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The presumption that the
carrying amounts of certain of the Group’s investment
properties situated in the PRC are recovered entirely
through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of these investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax
rules.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment

Right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual

Report 2022

ARGt R RERER
HEERIR (&)

st A ERZRN T ERIER (B)

KREYZEZFEFRE
MAEUAABREAENREYE
EEZIRIERESBEMS  ARBESE
ME RE--F+=ZB=+—8"
KEBPRENMNIKFE 412,381,000
7T (ZZEZ—4 454,913,000 7T) =
KREYXLUBBREZHERMIEEE
HEHEZREMEMSBAILHK
EFmB B mERNTE AER
RAFEZzZETREYEREERED
FBHEFLUSHWE > #E B HE
MRZELREMEZ AREEE 2R
JEFRIETH R IR IR B AR AU RERR o

RFEEERYE BB RR G E

EREEERYE BERREBRME
RMRFHTERBE WH) FIBR -NEE
BERTRER  ZEBTITRAE K
fEHf s LEHRFHUTRIE (D2
DEETMEHXUEETABRAESR
E2EEBE QEERAESTEITR
EEBEXF WAEREE MBER
STEEREEMGFZRRRERE

ZIREFER) ; KRG EEt oI RE & EERT
FREERMEZER% R R=7EA

RBEMBRE - RR KRG (BEMR
%%fﬁﬁmg%ﬁl,\Jzi‘a‘§$) BEEM
''''' L) R SHREASETPAERNIER
BEFRELEEARTE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$96,522,000 and HK$44,004,000
(2021: HK$667,407,000 and HK$57,697,000),
respectively. Impairment losses of approximately
HK$289,000 and HK$38,614,000 (2021:HK$Nil and
HK$1,187,000) was recognised on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets respectively, during
the year ended 31 December 2022. Details of the
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in notes 16 and 14 respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker (the “CODM")
has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company. The CODM reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H
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31 December 2022
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@) the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor;

(b)  the trading of food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food, commodity hog;

(c) the construction and development segment is
engaged in construction and land development;

(d)  the rental segment is engaged in the leasing
of logistic facilities in Hong Kong and office
facilities in the People's Republic of China
(“PRC");

(e) the financial leasing segment is engaged in the
provision of financial leasing services; and

(f) the mineral products segment is engaged in the
flotation selection of non-ferrous metals mines
and sales of mineral products.

The CODM monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before taxation except that interest
income, finance costs as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilites as these liabilities
are managed on group basis.
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31 December 2022

2T+ "BA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RKESFEEHE @
Trading  Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products  development Rental _leasing products Unallocated Total
j BEAR ERREE g HERE HE bl a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAn TFin Fin Fin Fin FAn Fin Fn
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZZE+A=t-H
Jl2:3:5
Segment revenue: HEBA
Sales to external customers HEFHRER - 464,803 - 231,852 16,128 217,493 - 930,276
Revenue from contracts EREHBA
with customers
Timing of revenue recognition WA
At a point in time REEY - 464,803 - - - 217,093 - 682,296
Revenue from other sources HAMFRA - - - 231,852 16,128 - - 247,980
Other gains At - 999 - 1,455 16 7 - 2417
Other operating expenses EhEEEs - (7,891) (172) (39,708) (1,701) (3,318) - (52,790)
- 457,911 (172) 193,599 14,443 214,182 - 879,963
Segment results ﬁﬁ% (1,703) 11,521 (378) (34,769) 768 5192 - (19,369)
Reconciliation:
Bank interest income f ﬂ A 34
Unallocated other operating %ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ SIATEE
income or loss 186
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥R EMFANREL (56,626)
Finance costs EERZS (148,496)
Loss before taxation il (224211)
Taxation 2 1872
Loss for the year FEFR (2223%9)
Segment assets NEEE 65,167 478,035 431,761 420,628 203,435 289,076 - 1,888,102
Recondillation: o/
Elimination of intersegment receivables HENERRNTE (547,692)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ REREMAIREE 604,564
Total assets BELE 1,944,974
Segment liabilities NEEE 753 321,261 210,307 110,089 79,516 85,983 - 867,909
Reconciliztion: e
Elimination of intersegment payables HEA BRI (550,134)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities mﬁ?ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfi 841,565
Total liabiities BREERE 1,159,340
Other segment information HnpEER
Share of loss of associates NMEBELATSE - - - - = = (19,934) (19,934)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRESEAERR - - = (38,614) - - - (38,614)
Impairment loss on property, plant and % BERXEAESE
equipment - - - (289) - - - (289)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT W - - 627 - - 627
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH = (2.297) (28) (159,221) (@11 (2,966) - (164,923)
Interests in associates REBAAER - - - - - 204,738 204,738
Capital expenditure* BRRT - - - 260 10 3 164 457
Fairvalue loss on investment properties ~ BENEZ AR EEHSB - - - (2,325) - - - (2,325)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESHEEER (B
Trading Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products development Rental _ leasing products Unallocated Total
fit B BRREE g RERE 13 HE &5t
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$j000 HK§'000
Fén Tin TiEn Tin TR Tin TR Tin
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--E+ZR=1+-H
LLEE
Segment revenue: RERA
Sales to external customers HEFHRER - 399,541 - 271,664 20473 237,107 - 928,785
Revenue from contracts ZEAHKBA
with customers
Timing of revenue recognition WA
Ata point in time JAELSEY - 399,541 - - - 237,107 - 636,648
Revenue from other sources HHRBERA - - - 271,664 20473 - - 292,137
Other gains or (losses) a8 = 7,468 = 9,180 b = = 16,675
Other operating income/(expenses) HtiEEBA/ () S (3592) (49) (34,524) (91,899) 4,660 - (125,404)
- 403417 (49 246,320 (71,399 241,767 - 820,056
Segment results NELE (26) 5,550 (22,129 12,429 (73,703) 288 - (54,993)
Recondilation: g
Bank interest income RARISHA 55
Unallocated other operating FREEMTENATEE
income or loss 654
Corporate and other unallocated expenses  EEREMFHEHZ (14,007)
Finance costs EEGES (101,839)
Loss before taxation il (170,130)
Taxation e (7,160)
Loss for the year FEHE (177,290)
Segment assets NEEE 4,099 650,364 502,217 1,060,798 307,939 368,013 - 2,893,430
Recondillation: ik
Elimination of intersegment receivables S EREENTIE (887,410)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ SEREMANREE 874,031
Total assets BELE 2,880,051
Segment liabilities NEEE 3,679 612,892 266,575 783,370 179,328 145,735 - 1,991,579
Reconcillation: .
Elimination of intersegment payables HENBREMTE (887410
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites S EREMKHEEE 671,486
Total liabilities BREESE 1,775,655
Other segment information i AEER
Share of loss of associates HMEBEATFR - - - - - - (20,963) (20,963)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEAERE - - - (33,479) - - - (33479)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRESERERR 3 5 (1,187) 5 5 S (1,187)
Depreciation and amortisation MERSH (26) (3,069) (69) (155,276) (421) (3,077) (131) (162,069)
Interests in associates REEATZ #E - - - - - - 284,605 284,605
Capital expenditure* EART* - - - 5,000 90 300 - 5,390
Fair value gain on investment properties  RENE 2 AR ERE - - - 9,866 - - S 9,866
& Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, * BERABETOUIEREYE BRERSR

plant and equipment and investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESFEEE @)
Geographical information & &k
Over 90% of the Group's customers are located in INEE0% L T BRI R Py
Mainland China and revenue of the Group is mainly REFBWATERGPERRMZKE
derived from operations in Mainland China. The XX - EHENAGMEENEE I
management considers that it is impracticable to AR FEZEETLARA[{To
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.
Information about a major customer TEZEZER
Revenue from customer related to trading of food UTAREEEELEAER KR ABE
products segment of the corresponding years 1N%EEEERYEEEERa IR
contributing over 10% of the Group's revenue are as N
follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Customer A ZERA - 110,690
Customer B %FB - 89,517
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over ' MERAUL AL SR A EE E AR UL A 10%
10% of total revenue of the Group. Mo
REVENUE 5. KA

The Group's revenue generated from wine and
liquor, trading of food products and mineral products
business segments are revenue from contracts with
customers under HKFRS 15. Except for rental and
finance leasing, all contracts are for period of one
year or less, as permitted by practical expedient under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

FEBRBBE EERRKEEES
DEZWATEBMHBREEDF5
MEBETZEREHRA FHEHERME
BELSN RIFEBHHREERFE5
WAFFZPIITRER A FREENZE
HR/—FRUR DEEZERENE
NZRXHBRTLURE -
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31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA (#8)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ZERESHWARS
customers
An analysis of revenue by types of goods and services BE R EREERDT WA
as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with ERBHKA
customers
Sale of wine and liquor HE R - -
Trading of food products BEEBSH 464,803 399,541
Sale of mineral products THERE 217,493 237,107
Total revenue recognised at NSRS A A N
a point in time 682,296 636,648
Revenue from other sources HhRIFEWA
Rental BE 231,852 271,664
Financial leasing MEHEE 16,128 20,473
930,276 928,785
Time of revenue recognition NS
At a point in time NSRS 682,296 636,648
Over time BiE B R - S
682,296 636,648
Revenue from geographic market: I TS Z WA -
The PRC =8 870,121 868,486
Hong Kong B5H 60,155 60,299
930,276 928,785

134 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBIRRME

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES 6. HkA W= Esia
An analysis of other income, gains or losses is as Hig AN IWZSHEEB 2R WT
follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Interest income ISV ON 2,087 2,232
Bank interest income RITH] B WA 34 55
Government grants (Note) BB (M 5E) 533 280
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEYEZ ANEEB) WE
properties (2,325) 9,866
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HE&EFAES E 2 WHE - 3,401
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE QB 2 Wm - 123
Others Hith 2,368 1,427
2,697 17,384
Note: Mtz -
Government grants were mainly granted to the Group as Y AREEBNHNTENTEAS S FPEN
subsidies to support the operation of the PRC subsidiaries. BT EN@EE) W EI A&
There are no special conditions or contingencies that are REEEERET BERIEREMEG -

needed to be fulfilled and they were non-recurring in nature.

FEIATEEEEZERERAT 135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ImRMEE

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7. P& aTEia
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after KREB ZHRBIEELNG GTA)
charging/(crediting): T RIBEAER
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARZ 2 EFEMA
an expenses 484,421 453,411
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERRBITE
equipment 12,449 11,764
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEITE 152,474 140,821
Amortisation of other intangible assets ELfth 72 & EE 84 - 9,484
Expenses related to short term lease  BIGHAHERBREBEEERMHM
and low value assets IR 3,285 4,174
Gross rental income TRE WA 4B ZE (231,852) (271,664)
Less: Direct operating expenses that 78 : ENEEREWRAZ
generated rental BHREKERX
income during the year 133,746 167,548

(98,106) (104,116)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEN £ 1,400 1,400
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®FAHX (BIFEEMD) !
directors’ emoluments):

Wages and salaries TITERHSE 10,580 10,131
Equity-settled share-based payments — #m#5 H LIRS (I FIE - 3,732
Pension scheme contributions RIREFH B 663 796
Other expenses: Hh !
Impairment loss on goodwill* e R AR - 33,479
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets* {5 FA & & 8l {E B5 18 38,614 1,187
Impairment loss on property, ME B E R EREREIE

plant and equipment* 289 -
o [tems included in other operating expenses * ERs A MK EE%

136 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCE COSTS =%
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Interest expenses on bank and other  R{ITREMBEEZFI BRx
borrowings
— wholly repayable within five years — AR AFERTHER 110,140 34,924
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEaBZMEMx% 38,356 50,705
Effective interest expenses on AR ESF BRI SEX
convertible bonds - 16,210
148,496 101,839

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the director’s remuneration of the Company
for the year, disclosed pursuant to Listing Rules and
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

are as follows:

EERFM
FRERBDESFHHIMFB  REL
MRRIRE B 2 EMFA) F3831F M E
T

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fees e 5,120 781
Other emoluments: HhiN -
Salaries, allowances and e 2HREYH@
benefits in kind 339 354
Equity-settled share-based G E UMD ZRIE
payments - 381
Pension scheme contributions RBOREETEIM 36 35
375 770
5,495 1,551

FEIEATEEEEZERERAT 137
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31 Dec

9.

Bt FE R R MI =T
ember 2022
—F+_"A=+—H
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEHM (@
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e ER Bk
s B & BELEEA 2 Pk
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE FTER FET FTERT FTER
2022 —E-C
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chen Chen BRELE (ii) 360 = = 360
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) TEBEAE () (i) 4,200 = = 4,200
Mr. Li Jiehong FHRESE (vi) 12 = = 12
Mr. Ke Xionghan T E = 339 36 375
Mr. Zeng Jixiang LERLE (iv) 7 = = 7
Mr. Yu Zicong RFBEE (iv) 7 = = 7
4,586 339 36 4,961
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan EEYSces 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang BEILE (i) 92 = = 92
Mr. Li Dawei FRERE (i 92 = - 92
284 - - 284
Independent non-executive B ERTESR
directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRELE 150 - - 150
Mr. Yang Yunguang BELRE 50 - - 50
M. Liu Tao ERE (v) = = - -
Mr. Chen Zhifeng BRE#LE (il 50 - - 50
250 - - 250
5,120 339 36 5,495
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EEHM (B

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

Equity-settled Pension
share-based scheme Total

Fees inkind payments (note) ~ contributions  remuneration
e Rk BasEMURN BihE
we BYAE ZARE () BE LGS HaezE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ TER TET T TET FHET
2021 ZZT-F
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chen Chen HERLE (ii) 9% - - - 9%
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) IREEE (FE) () - - - - -
Mr. Li Jiehong FHBRE (vi) 150 - 33 - 183
Mr. Ke Xionghan g - 354 150 35 539
Mr. Zeng Jixiang HHEEE (iv) 100 - 33 - 133
Mr. Yu Zicong RFRAE (iv) 100 - 3 - 133
444 354 249 35 1,082
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan (BB . 100 - 33 - 133
Mr. Zhao Wanjiang HEILE (i) - - - - -
Mr. Li Dawei FAREE (i) - - - - -
100 - 33 - 133
Independent non-executive BUERTES
directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa REELE 150 - 33 - 183
Mr. Yang Yunguang BERRE 50 - 33 - 83
Mr. Liu Tao 2ELE (v) 6 - - - 6
Mr. Chen Zhifeng BB (iii) 31 - 33 - 64
237 - 99 - 336
781 354 381 35 1,551
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of Wer : ZETHERBAQABDNR -2 —tF

share options granted to the directors under the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 23 May
2017. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group's accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note
2.3. The details of these benefits in kind, including
the principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph share option
schemes in the report of the directors and note 35.

ERAZ+=-HHEMZBRES IR
TEFZEREZGEFARE Z
EEREZEBENNREBELAERERH
MM MIBR 7 2 & 5t R 5
B2 3F 8 - 2 FEYH &

(BEEHEREZ T EFRAREK
B) ZHBRESFEREBRESE
— B R fff EE354% BE o
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company, its chief executive officer
and senior management of the highest paid individuals
as a discretionary bonus or an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022.

None of the directors of the Company and chief
executive officer of the Company agreed to receive
or waive any emoluments in the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2022.

No share option was held by directors as at 31
December 2022.

(i) Appointed on 28 January 2022.

(ii) Appointed on 27 September 2021.

(iii) Appointed on 17 May 2021.
(iv) Resigned on 28 January 2022.
(v) Retired on 22 January 2021.

(vi) Resigned on 28 January 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.
The five highest paid employees during the year
include one (2021: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of

the remuneration for the year of the remaining four

(2021: four), highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

e MBIRRMIEE
31 December 2022
BT+ TZRA=+—H
LaE=HES
FR - EAREHEEEE—% CZ
T—F %) ES HFMFBEHR
SR EXMIEE9 - M AFEER » HERIU%
(CE2EZ—F g &=iES LIE
KABIESE) 23#HMEFBUT ¢

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and HE RMREYAE
benefits in kind 2,031 1,398
Equity-settled share option expense RHEEBERERS - 93
Pension scheme contributions RIREBETEIMFERR 81 67
2,112 1,558

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HHWNF M EEzRSHIFEEE
S#EWMT:

2022 2021

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A
1 o =

31 Dec

11.

B 5 ER R MY EE
ember 2022
“F+ZHA=+—H
TAXATION 11. RE
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax RIEPHECERERERDEFRER
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax SEERARE AR B AT mMEEEN
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. MEHA25% o
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong RSB ERI MR EF BN =4
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of EraEBREBREEE2,000,000ET
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, B F B 1%8 25% MR RigiR » i ®d
and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 2,000,000 7o A9 % A 832 16.5% B9 7R
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for I o RIS F B MRS By E
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continued BESRENEN S EEHR16 5% —
to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the MR AL S BREEFEENY
Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity 2,000,000 TIhEHER IR S F & BB
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of 2,000,0008 ML st FEER IR & F 5
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the AI%8.25% & 16 5% MR RAEEHEF]
estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000. 2o
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current tax: BOEATRIA -
- Hong Kong —&58 600 790
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HRE PRGN 50 5
650 795
Deferred tax IRIEFR TR (2,522) 6,365
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year FEEIRIE (K R) B 4848 (1.872) 7,160

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

TAXATION (continued) 11. R\ (@)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss HEBEESE (AT REWB A
before taxation at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in M) SETERZRBEANRRRBEENRIE
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled LR EERRERAENREE S S
to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a B UIRBERARE EEER=R) HEm
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory MEHEROT -
tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FExT
Loss before taxation PRIRATES 1B (224,271) (170,130)
Tax at the statutory tax rate HEEMREAENRIE (37,005) (28,071)
Effect of different tax rates of B AR RERENEE
subsidiaries (15,624) (10,603)
Income not taxable for tax BRI UL A (814) (9,481)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary KB R4 ERE 2 MIEHE
difference 8,162 7,870
Utilization of tax losses previously not By caTI kR Z IRIEE1E
recognised 28,793 35,334
Expenses not deductible for tax ARHRAREX 19,600 17,352
Loss attributable to associates BE A BEILEIE (4,984) (5,241)
Tax (credit)/expense at the Group's BAREBERREAEN
effective rate RIB (E%R) X (1,872) 7,160

The share of tax credit attributable to an associate
amounting to HK$4,984,000 (2021: tax credit of
HK$5,241,000) is included in “Share of loss of
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$nil).

12.

\TEHﬁ‘M”ﬂFTMﬁIEH&%%
4,984,000t (ZE2EZ—%F | RMIBER
5,241,000/ 70) Est A& B m Mk H M
E2EWARKZ DL E QB EE]
BT

R
EETEZMBE_E__F+_8
—t+—HLEFEERTEARE (Z=
——F 1 EFHEIT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H
13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

13. BkEE
EABEBABLEZEREAREE

attributable to owners of the Company is based in the BRI RE T &iEsTE .
following data:
Loss 518
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the purpose of basic ARstBESREANREEEIE
and diluted loss per share 2518 (218,450) (170,916)
Number of Shares in &8
2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
Tie TR
Weighted average number of ARt ESREARE SR
ordinary shares for basic Z BB T8
and diluted loss per share 6,258,701 6,225,126

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022 as the effect of the Company’s share options

were anti-dilutive.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

14. ME-BERREE

Leasehold
improvement,
furniture Infrastructure
and Motor Construction and
fixtures Vehicle in progress building Total
HE
MERE ERR
RERKE "E EEIR RigF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TEn TEn
Cost RE
As at 1 January 2021 RZEZ-5-F-H 118,109 4,165 23,013 37,353 182,640
Additions HE 5390 - - - 5,390
Exchange realignment ERRE 4,950 64 92 1,562 7,538
As at 31 December 2021 and  RZEZ—F+ZE=1+-HEk
1 January 2022 :2::& B—H 128,449 4229 23,975 38915 195,568
Additions HE 293 - - - 293
Disposal e (1,667) - - - (1,667)
Disposal of subidiaries (note 36) & &/ B/AF] (1336) (4,708) - - - (4,708)
Exchange realignment EREE (2,038) (141) (2,079) (3,557) (7.815)
Asat31 December 2022 RIFZIE+IR=1-H 120329 4,088 21,8% 35,358 181,671
Accumulated depreciation ~ EHTER{E
and impairment
Asat 1 January 2021 RZB2_-%-F-H 65,608 3,105 23,013 27,520 119,246
Depreciation for the year FRiTE 9,373 465 - 1,926 11,764
Exchange realignment EREY 4,670 34 962 1,195 6,861
As at 31 December 2021and  RZE_—£+-A=+-Ak
1 January 2022 :2::& B—H 79,651 3,604 8975 30,641 137,871
Depreciation for the year FRNE 10,297 293 - 1,859 12,449
Disposal HE (1,667) - - - (1,667)
Disposal of subidiaries (note 36) & &/ B/AF] (1336) (4,693) - - - (4,693)
Impairment loss recognised in - R ERBEAKRERE (13)
profit or loss (Note) 289 - - - 289
Exchange realignment EREE (1,521) (95) (2,079) (2.887) (6,582)
As at 31 December 2022 RIBZZ#+ZF=1-H 82,356 3,802 21,896 29,613 137,667
Carrying amount ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
As at 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZA=+-H 37973 286 - 5745 44,004
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZA=+-H 48,798 625 - 8274 57,697
Note: The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of Mz . KEEZRASABEREER KL FEH

the property, plant and equipment based on higher BE_EIRSEGIAYE -BE

R 5%t = P W Bl 88 © A R R (E 5T
hZsrE A2EME16°

of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Please refer to Note 16 for the details of impairment
assessment.

FEIATEEEEZERERAT 145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BB
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 woE-—#—F—H 426,959
Valuation gain on arising from NABEEHEENGHEKZE
changes in fair value 9,866
Exchange realignment bE AR EE 18,088
At 31 December 2021 and AN _E_—F+"B=+—HK
1 January 2022 - "H#—HF—H 454,913
Valuation loss on arising from NABEEHEENGERE
changes in fair value (2,325)
Exchange realignment e AR EE (40,207)
At 31 December 2022 N2 THF+Z“H=+—H 412,381
Unrealised net loss in fair value of investment & &Y AR ERBSIREEFEE
properties, included in profit or loss (5t A8) (2,325)

(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s

investment properties

The fair value of the Group's investment
properties as at 31 December 2022 has been
arrived at the basis of a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

The fair value was determined based on
income capitalisation approach, which involves
estimating the rental incomes of the property
and capitalizing them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value respectively.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

(a)
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)
There has been no change to the valuation

technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties,
highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties
and information about the fair value hierarchy

15.

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

REME (&)

() FEBREVEZAAREE
(&)
FA EERMILEZS-

RIS IEN R ER  YEH
RARRERESBRIBR-

RE|BERR AEBEKEYEZ
HBEUARBERAREBEERZE

as at the end of the reporting period are as B
follow:
2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B -t B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FTHET
Investment properties REY= - - 412,381
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£—4% BMHR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHATT FATT FHATT
Investment properties REME - - 454,913

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

pA—gs

1 o =

31 December 2022

R H+R=1t—H

15.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

15.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

Valuation techniques

fhEHE

REME (&)

(a)

€)

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTIREEALE

FEEREMEZAREE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
EARIERAAUER
RREREMR

Commercial properties
located in the PRC

IRTENEENE

Residential properties
located in PRC

IR PEREENE

Fair value
ARfE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
339,582 372,141
72,799 82,772

Income capitalisation approach and
market comparable method

BABRGERBBLRE

Market comparable method and
Income capitalisation approach

HBLRERRAEA

There were no transfer into or from level 3

during the year.

(b)

The analysis of the carrying amount of
investment properties is as follow:

All the investment properties is situated in the
PRC under medium lease term to long-term

lease arrangement.

(c) Pledge of investment properties
Investment properties with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$300,188,000 (2021:
HK$328,919,000) are pledged to bank for
Group's bills payables and borrowings, details

of which set out in notes 27 and 30.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Capitalisation rate, taking into
account the capitalisation of rental
income potential, nature
of the property, and prevailing
market condition
of 4.8% t0 5% (2021: 4.4% to
4.8%)

Saleable unit rate per square foot
which compare with similar
location and other factor such
floor level, building age, size and
conditions of the properties are
HK$38,000 to HK$57,000 (2021:
HK$43,000 to HK$64,000)

B RERCETRERA NE
HEREFTL ERELES
48%F5% (CEZ—F 1 44%FE
4.8%) \

SRR EMANEER
1Bl A NVRARERRAALL
FELRAEHEEEA38,000
BLEST 0008 (CE 4!
43,000 75 264,000 70)

Saleable unit rate per square foot
which compare with similar
location and other factor such as
floor level, building age, size and
conditions of the properties are
HK$9,000 to HK$11,000 (2021:
HK$12,000 to HK$13,000)

Capitalisation rate, take into account
the capitalisation of rental
potential, nature of the property,
and prevailing market condition of
4.5% (2021: 5%)

BRTERAMANNEER
Bl KO RKREAZAL
S ARAEHEEEA9,000
BRLEN,0008T (CE-—F!
12,0007 213,000 77)

SHREACEERSUA NE
WEREHTR EAthEA
4.5% (CZZ—F15%)

FR WEBANELS

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate
used would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value and vice versa.

A significant increase in
the saleable unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value and vice versa.

FRAEACLEBY L7t
BERALERETH
R27Rke

R EEEARL
FHERL b EXIEN
i R24e

Asignificant increase in
the saleable unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value and vice versa.

A'slight increase in the
capitalisation rate
used would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value and vice versa.

FRTAHEBEAR
FHENA L EXIEY
W R214e

SRR R

BERALERETH
R27Rke

=R

(b) KREVMEZIREZBEINMT:
MHERIABAEZHFIAETZFAR
BREMEHMUNPE-

(0 RFREYE

IRE S EE5 300,188,000 7T
= i:—ﬁ 328,919,000
) 2R EYEE M AER ZE

e

BEREFIRIT H5F

IS EMTEE27 &30
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. BEYE (&)

(d) Investment properties leased out under (d)
leases
All of the Group's property interests held under
leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and classified accounted for
investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties
to various tenants. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 1 year to 10 years, at the
end of which period all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

RFEEHBZREYE

KREBIREHEE A LUBREAE
TZFREMERBORAAR
BERIFE Wt AKRBEYE-

FEERZLEPLEERE
ME-BN—RVT HPE—F=
TE MBS ENEBE R
o FRAB IR AT -

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FERESE
Leased
Properties
HEME
HK$'000
FAET
Carrying amounts IRE®E
At 31 December 2022 R-IE__F+”"RA=+—H 96,522
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—F+"RA=+—H 667,407
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_S-__F+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge rESH 152,474
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z_—F+°_A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge rEZH 140,821
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
8E #HE
—=-= B —F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
ILEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Expenses relating to short-term leases A RAfEHAFAE 2 X - 926
Expenses relating to leases of low- FRARBEEEMHEZHAX
value assets excluding short-term TrEEEBEEEZ
leases of low-value assets FEHRFRE) 3,285 3,248
Total cash outflow of leases HERS R HHEEE 167,735 186,874
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries 7%t E B A 5 BF (]
(note 36) (fFzE36) 328,411 L
Impairment loss recognised in RiEm MR AR B8
profit or loss 38,614 1,187
Additions of right-of-use assets AEERAEEE 164 47,543

PEIEAREREEZERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
)07 O = |

31 Dec

= _

16.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2022

—_HF+ZA=+—H

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the
consolidated cash flow statements.

During the current year, the Group leases properties
for own use. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 2 to 10 years (2021: 3 to 15 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to
continuous loss and future uncertainty in a rental
business in PRC, an impairment loss of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment (Note 14)
of approximately HK$38,614,000 and HK$289,000
respectively was recognised. The recoverable amount
was based on value-in-use calculation. The cash flow
projection was based on a five-year profit forecast
reviewed by the Directors in respect of the relevant
identifiable CGU. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using growth rate of 2.5%,
which did not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the rental business industry. The cash flows
were discounted using a discount rate of 14.7%. The
discount rate used was pre-tax and reflected specific
risks relating to the rental business segment. Other key
assumptions involve management’s expectations for
the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,187,000 was
recognised in respect of the right-of-use assets within
the rental business segment. For detail impairment
assessment of right-of-use assets, please refer to note
19.
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16.

EREEE (&)
HEZRSANBEFBHENEGER
ERER-

RAREE AEBHREMEEERB
R-FAESLNTAEEI0E (T - —
F I 3F15F) WE TR - HERKRIR
B EEETEDS G832 BERENGK
TR AE A o 1A 8 TE AR HE R 5T R BT B
HEAENRER  AEBERSANE
EWEEAFIIEMNSANEER

BE_Z-__H+°-A=+—HuLHF
B> HRFPEBEEBRFESBREANR
GHEAHERRZ FRAREERYE -
MR RBE (fEE14) ZREBED R
#38,614,0008 75 %289,0008 7t EF
s e Bl &L IRBERAEESE
Er RensERANBRERESER
MR AN IREEHB Uz AFH
wHEAmMEL - BHEAFHZIRER
EXRMB25%ZEREHER ZILEX
TEmBEeEEERTERBFHIE
EEX-BEREWM14.7% 2 AHIREE
1TRGIR - IR ARIRE T BRI AT > I &
MEEEXF BRI ERR &
HMEERKIREEBHTHEREN
FaHR -

BHE_ZT”_—F+“HA=+—HIHF
B> EREEXEB YBENRERREE
MR R B R 18491,187,00058 5 - B
FREESEREN G ZFE F2REM
5F190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN RECEIVABLES

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

17. FEKEXR

An aged analysis of the loan receivables as at the end NRIERRKR  EWEZHZEEBDFU
of the reporting period is as follows: T
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT
0 — 30 days 0ZE30H 7,063 7,752
31 to 60 days 31&260H 26,413 33,181
61 to 90 days 61290H 26,574 46,770
91 to 180 days 91£180H 59,299 89,659
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 82,772 93,725
Over 365 days 365H L £ 101,763 135,590
303,884 406,677
Less: Allowance for expected credit B FEREERE (FEiEE
losses (“ECL") E1R)) BB (104,526) (116,506)
199,358 290,171

Movement in the allowance for expected credit

losses of loan receivables

RWERAREEGRRFHEES

Movement in allowance for ECL that has been HE_ " G E-_F+T )ﬂ
recognised for loan receivables in accordance with =+ —BHUEEFEERESEVYERE
general approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ﬁu%’gg—)ﬁﬁﬁgﬁm ﬁgﬁgiﬁjﬁﬁguygﬁmﬁ

ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

BZREEBRREES-

Total
st
HK$'000
FHET
Balance 1 January 2021 ’::;: F—HB—HZi&EH% 23,123
Recognition of ECL RTEMEEREE 91,242
Exchange realignment B A2 2,141
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and N2 —F+Z“H=+—H
1 January 2022 "B _F—RB—HZ#&% 116,506
Reversal of ECL TRHE BR[O (1,663)
Exchange realignment bE s EE (10,317)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 RIZEZZF+ZA=+—HZ#er 104,526
Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set TERRE BB b IR H I MIEE43 0

out on note 43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ImRMEE

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

18.  RENTAL DEPOSITS PAID 18. BifEEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Rental deposits paid BENHEEEE - 4,298
Rental deposits paid related to rental deposits paid to ENESETcEMN IR EBSE—
landlord for tenancy agreement more than 1 year in FEoHEREOE TSN HESERS
PRC premises. Bl
19.  GOODWILL 19. e
Total
et
HK$'000
FHET
Cost D%
As at 1 January 2021 C::: F£—HA—H 125,133
Exchange realignment R 5,234
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R ZE-_—F+_"_B=+—HX
B2 "4—F—H 130,367
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERB AT (M5E36) (30,509)
Exchange realignment fE R AR (11,017)
As at 31 December 2022 N_E__F+"RB=+—H 88,841
Accumulated impairment REHRE
As at 1 January 2021 nN_Z-_—F—HF—H 88,382
Impairment for the year (note 7) FRRE (F5E7) 33,479
Exchange realignment bE R 4,474
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R_ZE_—F+_B=+—HMK
_E__#F#—HF—H 126,335
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEWB AT (FfsE36) (30,509)
Exchange realignment BE 2 SH 2L (10,660)
As at 31 December 2022 A _E__F+_"_BA=+—H 85,166
Carrying amount IREEER
As at 31 December 2022 A _E__F+_”"_A=+—H 3,675
As at 31 December 2021 A _E_—F+"RA=+—H 4,032

E52 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU") of
mining business and the sales of green food products
for impairment testing.

Impairment testing of goodwill

After recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amounts of goodwill are allocated to groups of cash-
generating units as follows:

19.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

mE (&)
FPEEBCHEBZHEEIKEEE
HEEFRIHE uﬁ*@‘?uuzfﬁﬁﬁﬂjﬁu
(BREEHEN) NETRENF -

B 2 A
RRRRESEE BERESEDS
R FHUBIS B () ¢

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Mining business BT 686 752
Sale of green food products HELBE M 2,989 3,280
3,675 4,032

The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value in use calculations using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
prepared by independent valuers and approved by
senior management.

Rental business in PRC

The management of the Group concluded there was
indication of impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of goodwill and
certain right-of-use assets associated to the rental
business segment with carrying amounts (before
impairment) of HK$32,880,000 and HK$655,206,000,
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The recoverable amount of the rental business
segment was estimated individually.

B U [o] & B8 75 1R % B3 8 AL L (B AT A
RiESHREEBHEZRELFHZ
MHERERBRERERAIZERE
EFtEMEE -

FE B E
BHE_Z-_—F+°-B=+—HLHF
B AEBREEERAETRENRI
HABEEXEB S BAERMEBERET
FREEENTWEEREETRET
& BB RTHY BRI 8 9 1/ 432,880,000
#7052 655,206,00078 70 - lH E X745
$5 2 I B EE D BTG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
1 o =

31 Dec

19.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2022

—F+ZHA=+—H

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Rental business in PRC (continued)

The recoverable amount of the goodwill was
determined based on value-in-use calculation by
reference to the valuation report issued by an
independent valuer. The cash flow projection was
based on a five-year profit forecast reviewed by
the Directors in respect of the relevant identifiable
CGU. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using growth rate of 2%, which did
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the rental business industry. The cash flows were
discounted using a discount rate of 12.54%. The
discount rate used was pre-tax and reflected specific
risks relating to the rental business segment. Other key
assumptions involve management’s expectations for
the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$33,479,000
and HK$1,187,000 was recognised in respect of the
goodwill and right-of-use assets respectively, within
the rental business segment, as the management of
the Company considers that the rental business faced
weakened expectations on the performance in PRC
throughout the year.

The rental business was disposed during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (note 36).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Sales of green food products

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 14.83% (2021: 14.76%) and cash
flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%).

Mining business

The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 10.58% (2021: 11.37%) and cash
flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%).

The key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is prepared by independent valuers based
on past performance and management’s expectations.

No provision of impairment loss on goodwill was
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year.

19.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

e (@

BmEZRENS (@

HEFEBSD
FERRREREBAZRAIMIRES
14.83% (T "—% : 14.76%) > M8
BRERZIEE RS NHAEBERIY%
(T2 —F12%) #Alo

BEEEFS
FEARESREEANZRAERERA
10.58% (ZE-—F 1 11.37%) > M8

BRERAZIEE RS NHAEBERIY%
(T —F:2%) #E8 0

ERERBEAEZEIZRRIAN
RERAML HOEREHERER
Ko BRAMFT BB HEMERBE
REREEEREMEL -

TERAFEEZGaEaREMEE
WARKEREHE ZREREREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. Eﬂi’!““ﬂ/ﬁé
Trademarks Contract Total
1] =L et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET
Cost N

As at 1 January 2021 A ZE-—F—HF—H 2,964 55,888 58,852
Exchange realignment R 124 2,337 2,461

As at 31 December 2021 and B —F+°"A=+—H

1 January 2022 kR_E__F#—HF—H 3,088 58,225 61,313
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR (H5E36)

(note 36) - (51,858) (51,858)
Exchange realignment ERAE (273) (6,367) (6,640)
As at 31 December 2022 N — ey S I S 2,815 - 2,815
Accumulated amortisation and B 51885 K iRl (B

impairment
As at 1 January 2021 A ZEZ—F—HF—H 2,964 46,573 49,537
Amortisation for the year FR#EH - 9,484 9,484
Exchange realignment PE R A% 124 2,168 2,292
As at 31 December 2021 and R -_Z-—F+"H=+—H

1 January 2022 R_E-_"F—H—H 3,088 58,225 61,313
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBE AR (H5E36)

(note 36) - (51,858) (51,858)
Exchange realignment (ERAE (273) (6,367) (6,640)
As at 31 December 2022 R_B__HFtT_RA=+—H 2,815 - 2,815
Carrying amount IREEEE
As at 31 December 2022 N ZEZTHF+ZHA=+—H - - -
As at 31 December 2021 N ZEZ—F+ZHA=+—H - - -

Amortisation charge of approximately HK$9,484,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Other intangible assets of trademark of wine and
liquor as above amortised over its estimated useful
lives, which are 30 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
contract under CGU of rental business has disposed.
Please refer to note 36 for details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2022
ECITF+ZHE=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REE AT Z#ER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets TMEEEFE 126,929 161,208

Advances to associates, net of & N BB Kbk

allowance for expected credit losses ~ FEERE EE B & 77,809 123,397
204,738 284,605

Details of assessment of expected credit losses on
advances to associates are set out in note 43.

FEHEATRRZBBEEERZ
L INGETER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
1 o =

R #5 ¥R R P 51

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group’s interests in its principal associates, which
are unlisted, are as follows:

Name

kY

Registered share capital

AR

Place of
registration

R

REEQRZ#E (8)
AEERAETEBRERT GFLH) 2

@

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to
the Group
FEBERS
EREEGZASL
2022 2021

Principal activities

TEEH

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Group Company Limited)

R TRIEATEEFER
EEERAE)
(RIRBARIN T AT 4
ETHBERAR)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan
International Trading
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan Green Food
Distribution Company
Limited)

RITATEERE S
BRRAE)

EBRINATE RS
BREZERASR)

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (i)

RN EEA TSI ERE N
ERARREN

Shenzhen Shengsiming Trading
Limited (i)

rImERRBHEEE
BRABE)

Notes:

RMB200,000,000

AR #200,000,0007T

RMB50,800,000

AR #50,800,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AEK#50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,0007%

PRC/Mainland China

I,/ RER T

PRC/Mainland China

I,/ RER T

PRC/Mainland China

FE,/ RERA

PRC/Mainland China

R/ RER T

(i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for
identification purpose only.
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Sales of food and fertilizer
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Sales of food, fertilizer,
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s consolidated
financial statement prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

21.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
B CHF+"A=+—H
REE AT ZEm (8
MBERRE
MEEBREERBE AR ZHMBER
BEZEFINT o PPt B E R E
THIERBE AN B RS ERRER 2 B
ENBZ IR MBBmRRMIImZ £8E o

BE_Z__F+-A=+—HL

FRE

Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited

(Formerly known
as Shenzhen

Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Shenzhen
Group Company Shengsiming
Limited) Trading Limited
T AR T &
EFEEER
BRAF wYIH
(BRI B AT IRHEEE
BEFEBERMRAR) BRAR
2022 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Non-current assets FRBEE 28,869 -
Current assets mEEE 424,605 67,647
Current liabilities piii=t (120,037) (402)
Net assets BEZE 333,437 67,245
Reconciliation to the Group’s HAAREEREHE AT
interest in the associates: BRHEK:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership EAREBEBRELA 30% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment RERASHE 100,031 26,898
Revenue & 31,047 -
Loss for the year FEFHE (16,793) (37,241)
Group's share loss of associates FEESEHEARBE (5,038) (14,896)

PEERREXREMERBRAR

2022 F3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.

REEQRZ#E (8)

Summarised financial information (continued) B ERE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ESE_—F+_B=+—81
FE
Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited
(Formerly known
as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan Shenzhen
E-commerce Shengsiming
Group Company Limited) Trading Limited
TS A&
ETHBER
ERAT FH
(BIRE RN AT DR#HE
BETERERAR) BRRE
2021 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER
Non-current assets FREEE 16,986 8,681
Current assets MBEE 455,765 105,796
Current liabilities REasE (87,504) (393)
Net assets BETHE 385,247 114,084
Reconciliation to the Group's AAREERHERE 2 ERYE .
interest in the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership hRERBERELA 30% 40%
Carrying amount of the investment RERAO®HE 115,574 45,634
Revenue W 34,146 -
Loss for the year FEFE (657) (51,915)
Group's share loss of associates FERMEBENTEE (197) (20,766)
22. INVENTORIES 22. F&
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFET
Raw material R 41,076 35,855
Finished goods E L 108,275 61,145
149,351 97,000

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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23.

24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

PROPERTIES FOR SALE 23. HEWME
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Properties under development for sale & 2 @4 383,980 411,934

The properties under development for sale in the PRC
are under long-term leases.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24.

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods,
and rental income derived from rental business.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

PENFEERTYESTERAEE

FEUR B 5 IR TR
BB ZERTEREBHESRKLHE
EXBELEZEETIWA-

RE|BEHR BB ZRFIZEZAH
ZEREC DA -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month — (@A N 47,402 32,739
1 to 2 months —EREAR 30,965 30,131
2 to 3 months ME=1E2 42,357 40,682
Over 3 months BE=EA 43,719 52,321
164,443 155,873

Less: Allowance for expected credit A AR EERREE
losses (18,876) (19,184)
145,567 136,689

Included in the trade receivables consist of rental

FEWE Z R EIERES - AEEE

receivables. The aging analysis of the Group’s rental WM Z BRES DT
receivables are as follows:
2022 2021
HKS$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Up to 30 days 30H LA 4,547 2,442

PEIEAREREEZERARAR
2022 F3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ImRMEE

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. FEWREBERZ (8)
Movement in the allowance for expected credit FEUREE SRS FEHA S S ARG 8
losses of trade receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised HE SR E-_—F+_"H4
for trade receivables in accordance with simplified —+—HLFEERESETBREE
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31 B ST Frai MEEE A E L FEUN B B BR
December 2022 and 2021. SRR R EATERR S BB e E) o
Total
“aEt
HK$'000
FHB7T
Balance as at 1 January 2021 N_E _—F—FB—HZ4&R 18,310
Recognition of ECL WRTERREEEE 852
Exchange realignment bE R FEEE 22
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and N_Z-—F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 TEITF—B—HZ&ER 19,184
Recognition of ECL MR TaHRE B k518 1,391
Exchange realignment bE D AR (1,699)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 A B CE+_A=+—HZ 4R 18,876
Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set YR = B ET B H M543 0
out in note 43.
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FAIRIBE-HEERHEMEWRIE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT
Prepayments FENRUIA 152,370 249 918
Deposits and other receivables e Rk EMEWEIE 197,863 246,720
350,233 496,638
Less: Allowance for expected credit 78 : FEERE BE5 1B E 5
losses (59,715) (52,766)
290,518 443,872

162 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected

credit losses of deposits and other receivables
Movement in allowance for ECL that has been
recognised for deposits and other receivables in
accordance with general approach set out in HKFRS 9
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FAfTTRIA ~ & R Hth FE U =R IE

(48)
8 R EL A FE WS E T AR A 1R
D

BE_Z__FRIBZ_—F+°A
—t+—HLEFERBEEBMBREE
AISBOSEPR SR — MR 7D AR IR & S HoAth
BWHRIEED 2 BEEHRIERAEE
o

Total
4Ezt
HK$'000
FET
Balance as at 1 January 2021 A B —F BB 92,386
Reversal of ECL FEHR(E B A5 185 [0] (41,631)
Exchange realignment bE R AR EE 2,011
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and W2 _—F+_A=+—HK
1 January 2022 TSI TF—HA—HZ&R 52,766
Recognition of ECL SRIERAE B8 11,621
Exchange realignment bE AR (4,672)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 N _HF+_B=+—H24 59,715

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out in note 43.

As at 31 December 2022, approximately
HK$244,666,000 (2021: HK$320,701,000) was paid
as trade deposit and prepayments for trading of food
and minerals products.

Rental deposits and construction deposits for
the warehouse amounting to HK$28,297,000
(2021: HK$42,980,000) and HK$401,000 (2021:
HK$389,000) respectively were paid for the warehouse
logistic business for the year ended 31 December
2022.

TAHAE B iR s sr IR MY aE43

W_E_ &+ _RB=+—HB'%
244,666,000 0 (& - —F !
320,701,000 7T) EZ1EAEE B &
KREEZBS@ERFENHRIEB

BRYTERZEEHNSRENES
£ 5128,297,0008 T (B —F !
42,980,000 70) K2401,00058 7 (Z &
——4:389,00087T) ERNEHE_Z
T+ A= (e

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
)07 O = |

31 Dec

= _

26.

Bt 75 2R R B3 5
ember 2022
——H#+-“A=+—H
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RNEHREZEEY
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances (note) IR& RIR1T4EER 14,880 27,433
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEReERERPNIRER
consolidated statement of BEEEY
cash flows 14,880 27,433
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RIREHFR > FEER AR gﬂgmfﬁ

balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$14,610,000 (2021: HK$16,488,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Note: As at 31 December 2022, there were bank balances
of approximately HK$100 (2021: HK$3,063,000)
freezed due to litigation.
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H
FEft 8B ZEER KR EAEE
RREHRENE S RFTIZEZRE
ZARE DA

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EAR 5,579 9,342
1 to 2 months —EZWR{EAR 4,583 19,772
2 to 3 months ME=1E2 2,761 8,834
Over 3 months BE=EA 72,417 72,523
85,340 110,471

Bills payables NS 71,951 30,267
157,291 140,738

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2021: 30-day
terms).

Included in trade payables are HK$72,834,000
(2021: HK$73,500,000) construction payables
in which approximately HK$66,105,000 (2021:
HK$70,988,000) are defaulted.

As at 31 December 2022, bills payables
of approximately HK$71,951,000 (2021:
HK$30,267,000) were secured by investment
properties with fair value of approximately
HK$300,188,000 (2021: HK$328,919,000) and
personal guarantee by shareholder of the Company
and related parties.

All the trade payables and bills payables are
denominated in Renminbi.

BB ZERRABTEE > —ARIZ308 R
,H\H (:;‘:_EE . 3OE|3E/H\H) nl:l%0

ENEZRAEBEFEEMNIER
72,834,000 (& - —&F:
73,500,000 70) » HH4966,105,000%8

7T (ZEZ—4 © 70,988,000 7T) Bi&
4K o

RZEZZ_F+ZA=+—H" &
FZH471,951,0008 T (Z T~ —
130,267,000 HAABLY
#300,188,0008 T (ZE - —4F :

328,919,000 7T) NIE B XEFIRIFR &
AR B RS EHEAER

FIF A5 M 19 B 53 AR R B TR 3 MU
RIEHHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HthENREKREER

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Other payables Hih (I Ia 45,442 54,096
Accruals FESTE R 202,124 93,890
247,566 147,986

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payables are HK$25,280,000 (2021:
HK$48,411,000) rental deposits received from the
tenants of logistic warehouse and office in PRC,
HK$nil (2021: HK$194,000) related to leasehold
improvement payable.

Included in the accruals:

i) the default interest of secured bond of
approximately HK$78,969,000 (2021:
HK$32,700,000) (note 30e);

ii) the default interest of unsecured bond
of approximately HK$7,860,000 (2021:
HK$1,607,000) (note 30qg);

iii) the default interest of unsecured bond
of approximately HK$28,886,000 (2021:
HK$13,332,000) (note 30h);

iv) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$92,000 (2021: HK$43,000)

(note 30i);

V) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$25,457,000 (2021: HK$nil)
(note 30f);

Vi) the defaulted interest of other loans
approximately HK$782,000 (2021: HK$nil)
(note 30¢); and

vii)  the penalties from default construction
payables of approximately HK$29,892,000
(2021: HK$30,826,000) (note 27).
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B (CEZ—F 28T (M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBIRRME

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. AHEaE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Receipts in advance from customers ~ FEHERTEWRE L NIE

in relation to trading of products 28,135 94,350
Receipts in advance from customers — FEIER MBHEBWEFRIE

in relation to construction and

development 104,700 114,872
132,835 209,222
Movement in contract liabilities for the years ended BE_ T HFRZTEZF+TAH
31 December 2021 and 2022: =t+-HEFEZEHNEEES !
Construction
Trading of and
products development Total
BEER B K% =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
Balance at 1 January 2021 R_E-_—F—H—H
2 i8R 94,699 86,786 181,485
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result RIFEsRI EX s AL
of recognising revenue or other BRZFEAMBALL
income during the year that was HMBAER &4
included in the contract liabilities at aERL
the beginning of the year (94,699) - (94,699)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding S4B EIEI FEIEER
amounts recognised as revenue ERABMAZEEE
during the year 94,350 28,086 122,436
Balance at 31 December 2021 and RZE-_—F+"H8
1 January 2022 =+—HRZIZEZZF
—RB— B2 &% 94,350 114,872 209,222
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result B EMFAEH
of recognising revenue or other BRZFEAMALL
income during the year that was HMBAER 2E54
included in the contract liabilities at aERL
the beginning of the year (94,350) - (94,350)
Increase in contract liabilities excluding S4B EIEI FEIEER
amounts recognised as revenue ERAMAZEEE
during the year 28,135 - 28,135
Exchange realignment FE R = (10,172) (10,172)
Balance at 31 December 2022 A ZEZF+ZH
=+—HZ&H® 28,135 104,700 132,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 o =
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R #5 ¥R R P 51
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

30. RITHREMEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Secured bank loans (note a) BIERIEITER
(FyzEa) 20,944 80,919
Unsecured other loans mIEHEMER (f15EbZEd)

(notes b to d) 58,686 79,530
Secured bonds (note e) SIRIES Fiste) 109,000 109,000
Unsecured bonds (notes f to i) mIIMES (R 251,414 251,550

440,044 520,999
Carrying amounts repayable RiE W ZPT & T B2 H A

within one year based on BR—FRNEENRESEE

scheduled payment dates set out

in the agreement 381,230 461,049
Carrying amounts not repayable BEANRBREGHAERE—FAE

within one year from the end BEEAFREREEFRR

of reporting period but contain RE®%E GInAsRBan)

a repayment on demand clause

(shown under current liabilities) 58.814 59,950

440,044 520,999
Less: amounts due within one year B AR AREBEN
shown under current liabilities —FANEIHNEEE (440,044) (520,999)
Amounts shown under SRAIEREEENEER

non-current liabilities

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

(e)

As at 31 December 2022, the secured bank
loans of approximately HK$20,944,000 (2021:
HK$80,919,000) was secured by investment
properties with fair value of approximately
HK$300,188,000 (2021: HK$328,919,000) and
personal guarantee by shareholder of the Company
and his wife and related parties.

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK34,343,000 (2021:
HK$$37,680,000) was borrowed from Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary of the Group. The purpose for the
loan was purchasing staple food and liquor wine
products.

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured other loans
of approximately HK$20,054,000 was borrowed
from independent third parties and approximately
HK$16,676,000 was expired. The default interest
was approximately HK$782,000 (2021: HKS$nil) with
default interest rate of 3% to 18% per annum (note
28).

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$4,289,000 (2021:
HK$13,304,000) was borrowed from the shareholder
of the Company (Note 41(a)).

As at 31 December 2022, secured bond
of approximately HK$109,000,000 (2021:
HK$109,000,000) were borrowed from an
independent third party and secured by the
equity interests of two subsidiaries. The secured
bond was expired during the year ended 2019
and as at 31 December 2022 the default interest
was approximately HK$78,969,000 (2021:
HK$32,700,000) with default interest rate of 10%-
30% per annum (note 28) (the "Default Secured
Bond”). The Group is negotiating with secured
bondholder to extend the Default Secured Bond.

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

30. RITKREMES (@)

=

(a

RIE-__H#+_"RB=+—H'B
AR 1T B R A920,944,0005 7T (=
=T — —4 : 80,919,000 7T) JsEA
#,{E49300,188,0008 7T (ZE - —
£ 1328,919,000/8 70) IR E Y EE
B EBARATEREREETUR
RN 5 EHEAIER

W_E_Z_F+_B=+—H &
IR E M ERAY34,343,00058 70 (&
T~ —4F : 37,680,000 ) JHfE B
AEEMBATNIEERREFILKR
HEHRMBRAB ZEMILHE
FREBFEREBERER

R_E__&E#+_/F=+—H &
R E Mt &30 4920,054,000% 7575
BEBRBIIE=7K416,676,000%
TTEEmRENFNE3I%E18%
STERENT EAA782,0008 T
(CE2Z—F 287 FIsFE28) 0

R_EB__F+_/F=+—H &
IR E M E 494,289,000 7T (&
T —4F 1 13,304,000 7T) JHEE
KATBIRRER (H5F41(a)) ©

R_EBE__F#+_B=+—H'B
I EFH49109,000,0008 7T (Z
T~ —4F 109,000,000 70) b
EEBIE=H HWMERBAE
ZREFIRF BIEFESNEE
—E-hELEERm ERR_E
T TE+A=+—R RENE
ME10%-30%st EHENFEL
778,969,000t (ZE - —F !
32,700,000587T) (fiz¥28) (MEHE
KIFES)) - AEBIERBIKFR
HERAEANERLERENDIEFES
ZHARR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R MY 5E

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

VA
1 o =

30.

(f)

(i)

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bonds
of approximately HK$64,000,000 (2021:
HK$64,000,000) was the principal amount of
matured convertible bonds. The default interest
was approximately HK$25,457,000 (2021: HK$nil).
Details please refer to note 32.

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bonds
of approximately HK$71,414,000 (2021:
HK$71,550,000) were borrowed from independent
third parties. Approximately HK$70,414,000 (2021:
HK$11,600,000) was defaulted as at 31 December
2022. Approximately HK$7,100,000 (2021:
HK$11,600,000) of the unsecured bonds were
expired in which the Group received a winding up
petition issued by an unsecured bondholder for the
debt amount of approximately HK$7,198,000. Please
refer to note 47(viii) for further details. The default
interest was approximately HK$7,860,000 (2021:
HK$1,607,000) with default interest rate of 2% to
6% per annum (note 28).

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$111,100,000 was the principal
The
unsecured bonds was expired during the year ended
2021 and the default interest was HK$28,886,000
(2021: HK$13,332,000) with default interest rate of
12% per annum (note 28). Details please refer to
note 32.

amount of matured convertible bonds.

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bonds of
approximately HK$4,900,000 (2021: HK$4,900,000)
was borrowed from independent third party. The
unsecured bonds were expired. The default interest
was approximately HK$92,000 (2021: HK$43,000)
with default interest of 1% per annum (note 28).
The Group received a winding up petition issued by
the unsecured bondholder and the petition had been
withdrawn on 3 March 2022. Please refer to note
47(iii) for further details.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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PEE
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Tﬁ! Tﬁ g (n\ﬁ)
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A _E - _E+“H=+—H &
IR (E 25 4964,000,0008 7T (ZF
——%F 1 64,000,000 7T) b % E EA
AMRESZASIE ENFES
#925,457,00087T (ZEZ—F . &
BT c BRAEIE B2 EE320

N _E__F+ZHA=+—8 &
KIMEHLT71,414,0008 7T (ZF
——4# 171,550,000 %) JHEE
BUB=F - R_E__F+A
=+—H>%470,414,000/ 7T (=
T —4 111,600,000 7T) X
X 4 #97,100,0008 T (ZEBE_—
£ 111,600,000 70) Z EIKIRESH
BEEm AEEWE — % EIKRE
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IEIREZ49111,100,0008 7575 5 5
HAmRESZASE BIKHE
ERNBE_S_—FIEEER®>
BENENR12%TENELNF B
#28,886,00078 7T (Mz128) - B RAE
15 E2HEME32

A B __F+ZA=+—8"
EIRIREH494,900,0008 77 (ZF
——4F 14,900,000 75) L& B 15
UE=F o EIRFEESEEM-EE
ﬁﬁiﬂ@%:ﬁr% HEQFELNS
92 L0007 (ZE - —4 : 43,000

7o) (B¥5E28) - AEBEULE — %
?&ﬁﬁ%?—:ﬁ)\?’fﬁzfﬂﬁi*ﬁ’
ZERCONR_TEZ"F=RA=H#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 30. SRTRHEMES (@)
The above bank and other borrowings that are PR AREMESHUIBRERS
denominated in currencies other than the functional EETHEE S M DNy S & =H(E > &5 U0
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out T
below:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
RMB NG 83,280 164,499
HK$ BT 356,764 356,500
440,044 520,999
The ranges of interest rates on the Group’s bank and AEESRTEEMESNHXEE
other borrowings are as follows: T
2022 2021
% %
Secured bank loans BIRFIRITER

(note a) (MyzEa) 5.20-5.28  4.90-5.28
Unsecured other loans IR EMER (FsEbZEd)

(notes b to d) 3.00-18.00 4.35-18.00
Secured bonds (note e) BIRRES (fste) 10.00 10.00
Unsecured bonds (notes f to i) IR ES (HEEED) 1.00 - 12.00 1.00 — 12.00
DEFERRED TAX 31. EIEFRIA
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MR SRR Rxh T 2 mM= &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax FiRERESEHNEEEHEEIEN -t
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following BB N ET ZIEERIBAGRN
is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial S -

reporting purpose:

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET
Deferred tax assets RILRIBEEE (5,969) (6,549)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 30,415 35,929
24,446 29,380

PEIEAREREEZERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

31.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. IRIEFRIAE (48)
The following are the major deferred tax assets and NEAFERBEEERIE 2 T EIRITE
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during REEEREBERESHIN T o
the current and prior years.
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition  Accumulated Allowance
of investment of losses  Convertible ~for expected
property  subsidiaries  recognised bond  credit losses Total
Wk
HWEAH
Bff EEM 2L BHiEE
REME  AnEREE 2iER  TRRES iRt ®t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thm TEm TEn Thx Thn Thn
Deferred tax liabilities at RZEZ-5-F-H
1 January 2021 ZLLWQEE 30,242 3,167 (6,287) 462 (4.873) 2,711
Deferred tax charged/(credited) tothe &R/ G A)
consolidated statement of profitorloss ~ AABHREMEE
and other comprehensive income during A& 2 EIEHIE
the year (note 11) (1) 2,466 (2371 - (462) 6,732 6,365
Exchange realignment ERHK 1279 (79%) (262) = 83 304
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE--%+-A=1+-H
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=ZF-"E—-F—HZ
ﬁkﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 33,987 - (6,549) - 1,942 29,380
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated R A
statement of profit or loss and other CeERRAMRE
comprehensive income during WARR BTG
the year (note 11) (1) (580) - - - (1,942) (252)
Exchange realignment ERHK (2,992) - 580 - - (2412)
Deferred tax liablties at RIEZZ#+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2022 Zﬁfimlﬁigﬁﬂ 30,415 - (5.969) - - 24,446

Tax losses of approximately HK$61,270,000 was
arising in Mainland China (2021: HK$34,868,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 10% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$200,000,000 on 8 June 2017 to an independent
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds
can be converted into 500,000,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.4 per share.

The convertible bonds comprise of liability component,
conversion component and early redemption option.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible bond reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component on initial recognition
is 13.42% per annum. Conversion may occur at
any time between 8 June 2017 to 7 June 2019. If
the bonds have not been converted, they will be
redeemed on 7 June 2019. The Company may at
any time redeem the outstanding principal amount
of the bonds at face value together with the accrued
and unpaid coupon on the principal amount to be
redeemed. Coupon of 10% per annum will be paid
semi-annually to the bondholder. The convertible
bonds have been matured on 7 June 2019. The
outstanding convertible bonds transfer to other
borrowing (note 30(f)).

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon
rate of 12% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$111,100,000 on 1 November 2020 to not less
than six placees, being professional, institutional
and other investors who are independent of and not
connected with the Company. The convertible bonds
will mature on 31 December 2021 at its principal
amount or can be converted into 1,111,000,000
shares at the conversion rate of HK$0.1 per
share. The net proceeds of placing in amount of
HK$109,100,000 were used to settled the outstanding
above other borrowing.

The convertible bonds comprise of liability component,
conversion component. The equity component is
presented in equity heading “convertible bond
reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component on initial recognition is 13.58% per
annum. The convertible bonds have been matured
on 31 December 2021. The outstanding convertible
bonds transfer to other borrowing (note 30(i)).

32.

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
ECITF+ZHE=+—H
AR ES
rEBR _Z—tEBNHB—%
BiUE=FH (B5FE A B8 %
48%E 400,000,000 T - EEMEXRA
FE10%AJRRES - TR ES AT
HESFEARERER4BTZE
& §8 31 4500,000,00088 B 17 o

R ESEEa A BRIk
IR EEIEIERE R I D E (o R
BEHBI N2 AR PP EREF
BEBIHNERMNELAETFE13.42%-
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—NFERA Lt HHREMBERET - WES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ImRMEE

31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. AR ES (8)
The movement of the equity component and liability FRNARBESHNEDZRID R EEZ
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set DB ETU T ;
out below:
Liability Equity
component  component Total
BENS R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTER FTET
At 1 January 2021 R-B-_—%—-A—H 108,222 728 108,950
Effective interest charged BRAEZH 16,210 = 16,210
Interest payable EAFE (13,332) - (13,332)
Mature of convertible bonds A RES T (111,100) (728) (111,828)
At 31 December 2021 RIB_—F+"A=+—H S S -
As at 31 December 2021, outstanding principal of the RN —F+"HA=+—H>kEE
convertible bonds of HK$111,100,000 was expired Z o[ EEANE%E111,100,00074 7T
and transferred to other borrowing (Note 30(h)). BERREEEEMEE (HEE30(h))

174 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group’s lease liabilities arise from the lease of
properties of 2 to 10 years (2021: 3 to 15 years).
Interest rate underlying for the lease was from 6.48%
10 6.97% (2021: 6.48% to 7.00%) per annum.

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the
Group had lease liabilities repayable as follows:

33.

e MBIRRMIEE
31 December 2022
BT+ TZRA=+—H
HEAR
REBZHEEGEEEN2E10F (Z
T —F I3RI155) WYEHRE-AE
MR FEFZENF6.48%%E6.97% (=
BT —1F 1 6.48%%E7.00%) e

N_E-_—F+"A=+—HBKRZZ
“THF+ZHRE=1+—H FEEEEER
ZHEEENAT

Present value

of the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHE REHRE
TRRE (RE7ECE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET TAT TAERT TAET
Within 1 year —ER 38,569 144,853 47,996 181,423
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 32,523 142,127 38,942 169,514
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 53,676 195,742 64,696 251,575
Over 5 years EENE 26,238 220,843 27,544 243,743
151,006 703,565 179,178 846,255
Less: total future interest expenses B RIA) B R AR (28,172) (142,690)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 151,006 703,565

Lease obligations denominated in RMB was
approximately HK$44,250,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$565,768,000).

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function.

During the year, there were release of lease liabilities
upon disposal of subsidiaries amounted approximately
HK$367,941,000 (note 36).

N_E__F+-_HA=+—HB'BAR
B2 HE ST 4444,250,0008 7T
(B —14F : 565,768,000 7T) ©

AEFETEREBEEEMEEER
nBETEB HERENAEEER

BAENZRIBEER -

FERRHERBATRELIEEAE
#9367,941,0007 7T (MizE36) °
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31 December 2022
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. 87
Shares B&15
2022 2021 2022 2021
Number Number
| B
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tig Tk TERT AT
Authorised: AT
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 SREE10BTH
BBk 16,000,000 8,000,000 1,600,000 800,000
Increase in authorised share capital ETERAEM
(note a) GEE) - 8,000,000 - 800,000
16,000,000 16,000,000 1,600,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBEITRERER
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each SREE10ETH
BiEhk
At 1 January R—B—H 6,225,126 6,225,126 622,513 622,513
Exercised share option (note b) BITERERE (Htb) 88,240 = 8,824 =
31 December +-A=+—H 6,313,366 6,225,126 631,337 622,513
Note: FtsE -
(a) Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed on 22 (a) BER-_E-_—_&#—A-+—H

(b)

January 2022, the total authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$800,000,000
divided into 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of par
value HK$0.01 each to HK$1,600,000,000 by the
creation of additional 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each.

88,240,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were
issued as a result of exercise of share options under
the share options scheme adopted on 9 June 2017
in which 34,953,000 shares issued on 15 July 2022,
10,147,000 shares issued on 22 July 2022 and
43,140,000 shares issued on 15 September 2022.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 23 May 2007 (“2007 Scheme™)
and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a new share
option scheme (“2017 Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 ("Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2017 Scheme and
under any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the date of the passing of the resolution for
the adoption of the 2017 Scheme. The total number
of shares issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible person in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company or having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

35.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until it has been published. In particular,
no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of the date of the Board meeting for
the approval of the Company’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
and the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the 2017 Scheme shall
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of the official closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, the average of the official
closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant and the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBIRRME

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERGHESTE (48)
The following share options were outstanding under ER T B —+E 218 R
the 2017 Scheme during the year: M ARITE
2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
hfEFg I
SkiTEE BREHE SkROTRE  BREHE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT T2 BT T
t 1 January R—B—H 0.10 509,640 - -
Lapsed during the year FREHN 0.10 (2,700) - -
Exercised during the year ERITHE 0.10 (88,240) - -
Granted during the year FREH - - 0.10 509,640
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 0.10 418,700 0.10 509,640
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REREHRER R FERENTEER
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting 1T{EERUN T -

period are as follows:

2022 —E-Z
Number of
Grantees options Exercise price* Exercise period
EEA ERiEHE TEE 171EHA
‘000 HK$ per share
F15 gRATT
Directors 1,800 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
5% “EI—FRA+—HE
“ETMFSRB+H
Other employees 19,900 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
Hitgg —_E_—HFB+—HZE
“EIWERA+H
Consultants 397,000 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
EE “EI—FRA+—HE
“ETMFSRB+H
418,700 0.10

FEIATEEEEZERERAT 179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AREMBRRMEE

31 December 2022

—EBCHF+-HA=+—H

- A 3 ==
35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERGHESTE (48)
2022 (continued) B F (8
Number of share options
BREHE
At Exercised Granted Cancelled Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
Name or category of 1 January during during during the during the 31 December  grant of Exercise period of of share
participant 2022 the year the year year year 2022 share options share options options
® RZBZZE
- St +-B
SRERAHER —-A-H FRITHE FREH FREH FRENR =+-B BREEHAS BRETES BREOEE
HKS per share
SHAT
Directors
3
Mr. Li Jiehong 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
FRBEE ZTT-F 2 -FB+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
Mr. Ke Xionghan 4,060,000 (4,060,000 - - - - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
MiEBLE ZTI-F 2 -FB+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
Mr. Zeng Jixiang 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BEREELE ZEI-F B -F/B+-RHE
~A+-H “B-mERATA
Mr. Yu Zicong 900,000 - - - (900,000) - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RFBEE ET-E ZB-F5A+-RE
~A+-H “B-mERATA
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 900,000 - - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
[BEY s s ZTI-F 2 -F/B+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa 900,000 - - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RRERE ZTI-F 2 -F/Bt+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
Mr. Yang Yunguang 900,000 (900,000) - - - - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BEREE ZTI-F 2 -F/Bt+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
Mr. Chen Zhifeng 900,000 (900,000) - - - - 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RE#EEE ZTI-F 2 -FB+-RHE
~A+-H “B-MERATA
10,360,000 (5,860,000) - - (2,700,000) 1,800,000
Other Employees
HiteR
In aggregate 102,280,400 (82,380,400) - - - 19,900,000 11 Jun 2021 11Jun 2021 to 10 Jun 2024 0.10
@it - BT —F5A+-HE
7~B+—8 ZZMERBTA
Consultants
]
In aggregate 397,000,000 - - - - 397,000,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
a5t - “BT-FXAT-HE
ART—H “B-MERATA
509,640,400 (88,240,400) - - (2,700,000) 418,700,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

RERefEstEl (48)

2021 —E_—F
Number of
Grantees options Exercise price* Exercise period
EEA ERiEHE 1T1EE 1T1EHR
‘000 HK$ per share
15 FRAET
Directors 10,360 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
%% = _ f'E/ \E + E = =)
—= —[EIEE/ \ﬁ + E
Other employees 102,280 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
HitgS —_E_—F5A+—HE
—= —[EIEE/ \ﬁ + E
Consultants 397,000 0.10 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024
Ea R “ET—HFXBE+—HBE
—= —[EIEE/ \ﬁ + E
509,640 0.10
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * TR SAI R T AN B A E

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

fAE Bl B Y B0 T B AR R 01T
(EEAIET B
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31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

35.

. Ak 2
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35. BERGHESTE (48)
2021 (continued) B —F (8B
Number of share options
BREXE
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At Date of Exercise price
Name or category of 1 January during during  duringthe  during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
participant 2021 the year the year year year 2021 share options share options options
i RIB--%
b b3 +ZA
SREWRRER —-B—H FERR ENTTE FRGEH ERERHM =+—H BRERLAE  BRETESR HRETEE
HK$ per share
SRET
Directors
g%
Mr. Li Jiehong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
FHBRE ZEC-F A= R = E
~At+-H “E-mERAHH
Mr. Ke Xionghan - 4,060,000 - - - 4,060,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
A#EE ZBI-f B —#FRA+—HE
~A+—H ZZTWEARETH
Mr. Zeng Jixiang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BEHEE -2 “B_—#/A+-AE
~AE+—H :%E:@E/TEH‘E]
Mr. Yu Zicong - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RFBERE T T -FXA+—-HE
~At+-H ZEBCMERA+HH
Ms. Ho Wing Yan - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
L+ - S 2 -FXB+-HE
~At+-H “E-mERAHH
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RRERE ZBI-f BT —#FRA+—HE
~A+—H ZZTWEARETH
Mr. Yang Yunguang - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
BELRE -2 “B_—#/A+-AE
~AE+—H :%E:@E/TEH‘E]
Mr. Chen Zhifeng - 900,000 - - - 900,000 11 June 2021 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
RE#EE T T -FXA+—-HE
~At+-H ZEBCMERA+HH
- 10,360,000 - - - 10,360,000
Other Employees
Hitfgs
In aggregate - 102,280,400 S o - 102,280,400 11 Jun 2021 11Jun 2021 to 10 Jun 2024 0.10
ik Z2T-F It A= R = E
~B+—H “2-MERA+A
Consultants
L]
In aggregate - 397,000,000 - - - 397,000,000 11 June 2021 11 June 2021 to 10 June 2024 0.10
a5 “2—f “B_—£/A+-AE
~B+—H ZZIMESRBTHE
- 509,640,400 - - - 509,640,400

The fair value of the share options of the directors
and employees granted during the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$3,732,000
of which these share options vested immediately
and the Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$3,732,000. Share options granted to consultants
will be vested conditional upon the achievement
of attainment of specified performance targets by
respective grantees agreed with the Company. No
share-based payment expense was recognised as it
is unlikely that these grantees meet the performance
target.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 35.
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the

fair value of share options granted. The fair value

of equity-settled share options during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial

option pricing model, taking into account the terms

and conditions and following assumptions adopted

upon which the options were granted. The following

table lists the inputs to the model used:

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

Bﬁﬂﬂ*& D+$I (IIE)
MEHBERERNZRFB 2 ARETS
SRRLERENRARDESE-FR
REEERERELAENRE LB BR
RZEBREEERA LA &

7B B B R4 L B9 6% R0 e 16k 1 LA e BT £R
Mz TR - TREHIFTBEINAIH
BEk

Grant date
11 June 2021
RE B
ZEZ—F
~A+—H
Fair value at measurement date Ret2BAZ A ARE

(HK$ per share options) (BHERESRT 0.034
Dividend yield (%) & B Uz (%) -
Expected volatility (%) FEER K ME(%) 107
Historical volatility (%) [ S22 (%) 107
Risk-free interest rate (%) £ B b F) (%) 0.16
Expected life of options (years) FER RETRHARHA () 3

Weighted average share price MNEEHRE (ERAET)
(HK$ per share) 0.10
Closing share price (HK$ per share) U R&1& (A& #ET) 0.068

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
had 418,700,000 (2021: 509,640,000) share options
outstanding under the 2017 Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 418,700,000 (2021: 509,640,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$41,870,000.

The total number of shares available for issue
under the 2017 Scheme is 418,700,000 (2021:
509,640,000) representing approximately 6.66%
(2021: 8.19%) of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of this annual report.

BRENTEHREHREAE=GNE
LHESE HARBEBTHEEARE
13 o TR HA IR 0 2 B FE S R 8 BT 45 R A 2R
BENER AT AL EERER -

REBRESEAMBTERRARD
BEREtE-

BE_Z__F#+”-HB=Z+—H
EEE ARBRE_Z —t F5t
2]5418,700,0001p (Z&E_——% :
509,640,00017) BEIRAE R KRITHEE o
AEARNBRBEERRE T BT
FEHEATEBRERBRER AR
2£47418,700,0000% (Z & ——4F :
509,640,000/%) &8 4N & 38 f% B 18 N AR 2
41,870,000 7T ©

tE‘EJriIJIETTﬁi\é’fﬁZHy{
,Vh%(?éms 7005000 B ==l =
509,640,00088) » &L ZA~A B R AR E 3R
HEEZ B3R 1D26.66% (T —
£ :8.19%) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMBAT
On 8 November 2022, the Group entered into a W_E - _F+—ANB > KEE:TL
sale and purchase agreement to disposal of its BEWHZ  UR—2BILE=H (TE
100% equity interest in Beijing Mumian Shangyuan FHHEERIEFABLITEESEIE
Investment Management Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries ERABDLRENBAT (tEHEX
which engaged in rental business to an independent %) 2100%Kk#E REREAARE
third party (“the Purchaser”) for cash consideration 550,0007t (FBE 1 49605,00087T) ° 5%
of RMB$550,000 (equivalent to approximately HEBRZE-_F+—B=-+HH
HK$605,000). The disposal was completed on 25 =pfo
November 2022.
Summary of the effects of the disposal is as follows: HEZEMEBYT
HK$'000
Consideration: RE: TFAET
Total consideration HARE 605
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which Kkt B ER A B
control was lost o
HK$'000
TFAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LY EN YL 15
Rental deposit paid B HEEE 4,079
Right-of-use assets FREEE 328,411
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 86
Other receivables HAE U RIE 86,575
Amount due from related parties FE Uk R B 75 =R 1B 440
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 14,690
Current liabilities Bk JA=Ni=]
Trade payables FET B Z RN (4,188)
Other payables and accruals HitE R IB A EE A (48,808)
Contract liabilities aHad (25,667)
Lease liabilities HESE (95,244)
Short term borrowings HEE (8,803)
Non-current liabilities JERBARE
Lease liabilities HESE (272,697)
Net liabilities disposed BHEAREFER (21,111)
Release of exchange difference upon 1% U & R HE o] B 02 = %E
disposal 5,655
Release of non-controlling interest ("NCI") 7> H & B8 [0 IF1E pa e s
upon disposal (TSRS ) 15,434
(22)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMBAT (&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT Z I
HK$'000
FET
Consideration received BURE 605
Net liabilities disposed BHESEFEE 21,111
Release of exchange difference R HERELIERZELB
upon disposal (5,655)
Release of non-controlling interest PR E RO JE R e (TIFEERR R )
("NCI") upon disposal (15,434)
627

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries

HEMBARZRE ML IFE

HK$'000
TFET
Consideration received in cash and MRS KRIBEFEYWEIRE
cash equivalents 605
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BEHERERIBEEEEY
disposed of (14,690)
(14,085)

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
1 o =

31 Dec

37.

38.

39.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2022

—F+ZHA=+—H

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes
27 and 30, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain properties for rental income
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years.

As Lessors

At 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

37.

38.

BEERH
AEBUHBEEFRTZIRITERS
BOR SRR E M BRI EE27 %300

mEEERH
AEERBEEHEZHEEETY
FUESHESWA - WEHEBES—
ERFHE

ERHEA
R_B_—FR_B__F+_H
=+—HB> AERHEBL U TRER
REEARRETAY

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year — &R 60,448 214,162
In the second to fifth years F_FEERTF 122,317 176,531
Beyond five years B A E 1,421 2,841
184,186 393,534

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases
are negotiated for an average term from two to three
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals.

KEHEENREREEMREETHA
=Y ERNGZEE - HENF IR
BAamE=F BESRNERNEE
FEFEHAEE -

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39, BAKIE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of the ~ BRIEFINERNREGETTH
construction cost of properties for WKRPEEZHEYERE
sale contracted for but not provided ~— FAZ BRI
in the consolidated financial
statement 7,403 8,400

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a
registered scheme under the MPF Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employers and their employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
a rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme, which contribution is matched by employees
and capped at HK$1,500 per month.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees employed by the entities in the PRC
are members of the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
entities are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government is to make the
specific contributions under the schemes.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, no forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

40.

e MBIRRMIEE
31 December 2022
BT+ TZRA=+—H
RIAERETS
FrEERTELBCERESRMR
B TEEsE (TaEEs8l) -8\
AT ERE GREINE R BT ENE
B)EL-rEEstENEERBIIR
SAUESEER THRAEENEED
A - RiFBBEEFENRE EE
REEEAED AT XA ARIR
BB R AERE N BB TS
NiE—SEZRABRBEEFAFERE
B9 £ R o 2 62 B 4% 4H B <7 Fr A A B95 %
mZstEIH MESTNEREEE D
EbERR - 5 B HR ER431,500% 7T ©

BiEmREAE BB S8 MEER
IREAET IR AR EBRERE 5T
FRENLERAZFE S EELAMH

=+
o

FEERTEAERMERNES 95
o B U R Y B SR AR AR A B EIAY
B PREBR A M EEHENET
B (R RAEN BB MR A
EENPREBTEENRKET S
W —SERBRESEFLRER H#

=+
o

B _HFRZB_—F+ZAH
=+—8> AEETEDLUBIHERE]
FR R R AR 2R 4F B AT R fiER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBS IRRMEE

31 December 2022

B H#+"A=+—H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related parties transactions:

(@) Transactions with related parties and

connected transactions

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the bank
loan of HK$20,944,000 (2021:
HK$80,919,000) (note 30(a)) and
bills payables of HK$71,951,000
(2021: HK$30,267,000) (note 27)
were guaranteed by Shenzhen Jianlai
Industrial Co., Ltd. ("/RYITHEKEEXAE
FR/AF"), a related party of the Group in
which the shareholder of the Company
has beneficial ownership, shareholder of
the Company and his wife.

At 31 December 2022, the unsecured
other loan of HK$4,289,000 (2021:
HK$13,304,000) (note 30(d)) was
borrowed from the shareholder of the
Company.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

41.

E KRR X5 RAGER

BRZEFRE

MBREFERBEEIN &

EBFTUUTERBH SRS -

BRI EITZ R B REAE

X%
(i)

RZEZZF+ZA
=+—H RBRITEX
20,944,000 7T (=&
— —4%F :80,919,00058 7T)
(Ht5E30(a)) MEENME
71,951,000 7 (ZF
——% :30,267,000% 7T)
(F35E27) Th B A EERE
A RNINMEKEEBR
NE (RABEIRENE
BERBEA®E - AQ7F
BEKREEFEHERC

RZEZZ_F+°A
=+—H EEFEME
4,289,000 (ZF
— —4%F 1 13,304,00058 7T)
(FFEE30(d)) THfEBAA
BIRRER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties and

connected transactions (continued)

(ii)

On 10 June 2019, the Company
renewed the Framework Agreement
with the supplier to the supply of the
products. Beidahuang Marketing Co.
is a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. The Supplier is
the subsidiary of Beidahuang Marketing
Co., which is also a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the
Company. The aggregated annual caps
for transactions contemplated under
the Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB150
million, RMB150 million and RMB150
million respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was a
total purchase of staple food amounting
RMB79,549,000.

The related parties transactions in
respect of above constitute continuing
connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with disclosure provided in section
“Continuing Connected Transaction” of
the Directors’ Report.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

41. BERMBE R 7 K& (E)

() HERMBAETZRZKREE
X5 (48

(ii)

RZE—AFEXA+H>
NN T)EEEEETE
g UHEESR 1L
MEHEHKRDBRAE
BERNBMBABIEEN
REAT -HEmAILKX
RS RN B R A B Bk
BAB MibAFTEHR
NEBERAB TN A A B M
BAEIEEmREEAL
AL EZRHEIE T s
THRZERAERBEW
FEAERZ B#E_ZZ
—hWE-ZEIEFRT
E_—F+ "B =+—
BIE=EFEZF  EF
HEETRETRSZN
MEELFRDIBAR
#150,000,0007C ~ AR &
150,000,000 & AR #&
150,000,000Tc HE_F
——H#+”"HA=+—H1L
FE>TEMNRIRELR
# N R #79,549,0007T ©

LR S RSB LT
RABI4AEFRAE 255
BREERZ NEFTR
5 IFRERER S —&H
EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41.

BALANCES (continued)

E KRR R 5 RAS6F ()

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HEABMAZEEKREELES
2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAT
Due to related parties  FE{JRAH: A5 FIE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TEERE (i) - 14,249
Mr. Li Jiehong FHIRESE (i) 691 691
691 14,940
Notes: 5T
) A director and shareholder of the Company. (i) KABEERKE-
(ii) A director of the Company. (ii) KABESR-
The balances with other related parties are SEMEAR 5 2 AR RR A IR IR
unsecured, interest free and repayable on REREBRERER
demand.
() Compensation of key management (0 FEEBABSZHM

personnel

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHT

Short term employee benefits 28R {E 8 27! 5,409 1,135

Equity-settled share option RiEEEERENS

expense - 381

Post-employment benefits BB R R 36 35
Total compensation paid to INFEESEABZEDBN

key management personnel L 5,445 1,551

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBIRRME

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

42.

RENESTHNEMIA
REBESHR SRR T AKREEER

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
Financial assets SREE
2022 2021
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised amortised
cost cost
BAFERZ RSBk Z
ERMEE TMEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Myt FTHET FHET
Trade receivables FEW E Z 8RN 24 145,567 136,689
Financial assets included in STATEIFRIE
prepayments, deposits and other B REMEK
receivables MEZTHEE 25 138,148 193,954
Loan receivables FEWER 17 199,358 290,171
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 26 14,880 27,433
497,953 648,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42.

(continued)

RENSSNEMITA (8

Financial liabilities SEiEE
2022 2021
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
Y18 8 P 2 R IE AR
5iRZ HERZ
EMEE THMERE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Byt THET FHET
Trade and bills payables B E SRR ENES 27 157,291 140,738

Financial liabilities included StAEMBEARIER

in other payables and accruals BHERzEHER 28 247,566 147,986
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 30 440,044 520,999
Amounts due to related parties  FE{TREEE 5 I8 41 691 14,940
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 151,006 703,565
996,598 1,528,228

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43,

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
parties, lease liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk mainly in relation to variable rate bank balances.
The Group's exposure to fair values interest rate risk is
mainly caused by lease liabilities and fixed-rate bank
and other borrowing. The Group monitors the interest
rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank balances, lease liabilities and
borrowings where necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant exposure to cash flow interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States
dollars (“USD"). The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

The Group currently does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD and it
is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currently exposure should
the need arise.

43.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

TREREEREZ BRRER (8)

2= fm B

FEETEHEBRSAEBNRER  HE
B R0F BIRTTHE R - AE BT E H BY
AnENXERIEZHREEERERE

EFMERZRITRAMEEGFRER AL
EFEERMFEAR WL ERHE

RITER HEREREENES -

REIEFR > AEE L EEREANIR
EREF EE o

s B

AEEZ EFURRE A TATE 3L
ZEUUARBET AEBRBLOEE
REBEUAREIE  HETIRITAR
LB TT (H8 7)) RFEt (T5&7t)) 1ER
Gho A EEE I H P HIME ERE K

FEBBERFRASFETR BT ZERR
Tﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂéﬁ BE}RHEITBERA
TR 2 B o A E IR E G E
9|\’H%TFPBZ% AT BB R RIIMNE

B 0K B R B B R R B RSIME
;—”gm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VA
)07 O = |

31 Dec

= _

43.

R #5 ¥R R P 51

ember 2022

—_HF+ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, advances
to associates, loan receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 97% (2021: 97%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2022.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  43. 2 HEAMEIEBERKE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EE8RE (@&
Trade receivables (continued) JEIW B ZERE (48)
Approximately 75.2% and 96.6% of total trade N_E_ R _EBE_—F+_ )%
receivables outstanding at 31 December 2022 —t+—BxEEEKNBEIREhE
and 2021 respectively were due from top 5 trade S B#975.2%~96.6% T4 ,}:ﬁéﬁj(ﬁ’gu&
receivables which exposed the Group to concentration BEES i AEB Y EERMED-
of credit risk.
Within -~ 3110120 Over

Current 30 days days 120 days Total
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ2Z-F+ZB=+—H i 30HBA  31E1208  @381208 st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate BHREERE (BHEERR) X 7.66% 883%  1276%  1697%  12.31%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REAE (FET) 32,739 31,281 39,786 52,067 155873
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) 2HBEHEERE (TET) (2,508) (2,763) (5,075) (8,838)  (19,184)

30,231 28,518 34,711 43,229 136,689

Within ~ 31to 120 Over

Current 30 days days 120 days Total
As at 31 December 2022 RZZ-“#+-RA=+-H B 30HA 31Z1208 #8iA1208 st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate EHEERE (RBEEBENE  1462% 9.10% 0.44%  2045%  11.48%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREAE (TET) 47,402 30,965 42,357 43719 164,443
Lifetime ECL (HK'000) LHBHEERE (T (6933 (2819 (184)  (8,940)  (18,876)

40,469 28,146 42,173 34,779 145,567
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE LGB EWE SR A M ENE

In determining the ECL of the Group’s advances to
associates, loan receivables and other receivables, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions
of the relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
value of any pledged assets, financial position of the
debtors and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 99% (2021: 99%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2022.

15
REEREEHES AR BRER
REAMBURIEZ RIAEEEER &
EERBEEBAMKCEREETEZER
REER L ERERREEZEE
BEBAZHBRRURERIREBIR

MR AR RTRR Z SHEEITEE 7F
&5 FRHARS 8 5T (4 o

AEBRMBUBEZEERBEE
EdhpdE R B &+ _"H
—t+—HEHMEBEELENII®% (ZF
— =€ G000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. S REMRTSIE BEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FERME (48)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IE (#8)
As as 31 December 2021
RZF—£+°-A=1+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
2 B ESMEER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FEx AT FHET
Loan receivables, gross el ez 306,677 = 100,000 406,677
Less: ECL on loan receivables o ENERZBHES
B8 (16,506) = (100,000) (116,506)
Loan receivables, net el EFEE 290,171 = = 290,171
As as 31 December 2022
RZE2ZZf+-H=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE FRER B ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FTAT TAER TER
Loan receivables, gross el Bz 202,120 10,619 91,145 303,884
Less: ECL on loan receivables W ENERZBHEES
B8 (10,007) (3,374) (91,145) (104,526)
Loan receivables, net EWERFE 192,113 7,245 - 199,358
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B IRRMEE

31 December 2022
ECITF+ZHE=+—H
ﬁnEHBEE B EEZ E *E&Eiﬁ (nﬁ)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables )\ G B2  EI B2 FY B I =
(continued) 1B (4)
Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows: FEM S HIERR = SEEEEFN T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE BIMER A=MER ezt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FHET TAET
At 1 January 2021 A_ET—FE—HA—H 23,123 - - 23,123
Net allowance for ECL on loan ERERZEREE
receivables BEEERE (6,492) - 97,734 91,242
Exchange realignment FER R (125) - 2,266 2,141
As at 31 December 2021 and e
1 January 2022 +ZR=1+—HBkR
“E_"F-F—H 16,506 - 100,000 116,506
Transfer of stages P ER R (522) 522 - -
Net allowance for ECL on loan EWERZBHREE
receivables BlREFE (4,515) 2,852 - (1,663)
Exchange realignment ER R (1,462) - (8,855) (10,317)
As at 31 December 2022 = S——
+ZA=+—H 10,007 3,374 91,145 104,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE M BEmRMEE
31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £ HIEAMEEY BIEREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (B8)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IF (4
The major terms of our loan receivable customers HPEKEFRELANTERS (B35
(including the dates of initial grant, renewal and KISH -EERIERBE -FEXEEAS
maturity, interest rate and principal amount), the value ) SEEELREBE -FEEEHSe
of asset collateral, and the outstanding loan amounts ERTEHAEEE1E (FBERE8518))
and accumulated loss allowance of expected credit FtEEBEERTT
losses ("ECL") are summarized as follows:
Loan Gross amount ECL
receivables as at ofloan allowance Loan
Loan 20211231, receivables asat  receivablesasat  Value of
Initial grant Date of Maturity date Interest  principal net of ECL asat 31December 2022.12.31, net of asset
date of loan loan renewal of loan rate amount allowance  2022.12.31 2022 ECLallowance  collateral
RZBZ-% g Ja i Jat
+ZB=t-B RI%ZZ% +ZB  +IA=t+-H
ZEhER +ZB Zt-HZ ZEhER
BREL NBESEE =+-Az  BEEE MERES BE
EHAH EREHAS BHEER HE EhkeH BREE RUER4E  BEBR BEAE ARREE
(RMB) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
(AE®) (B7) (B7) (&) (B7) (&7)
Stage 1 (initial ~ F—HE
recognition) ({15 HR)
Customer ¢~ BFAC 201803.09 2022.03.09 2023.03.08 0% 23,000 28,901 28414 (1407) 707 52899
“Z-\EZEAR IBIIEZRAR ZZZZE-ANA
Customer D~ ZFD 20170416 20220416 203,015 0% 22,000 27,685 7,179 (1,346) 583 50,187
“Z—tEME+AA ZEZZEMAYAA ZEZZENATER
CustomerE - BRE 201803.02 20220302 20030301 0% 22,000 27,645 7,179 (1,346) 583 50232
“%-\fZAZR ZB-TEZACR CB-=4=p-H
Customer P~ EFF 20200907 20220707 2003.07.06 2% 16000 19731 19,766 978) 18788 36107
“3TEEARTR CECTEtAtR ZECZELARA
Cistomer 6~ BFG 202007.19 20220719 203.07.18 % 16000 19638 19,766 978) 18788 32412
ZECRECAtAR ZBCIFtATAR CECZELATAA
CstomerH ~ BEH 2017.09.13 201.09.13 20220912 % 16000 19264 = = - 30
TI-tEABt=H ZZT-EARTZH ZZIIEARTCH
Customer | ZFl 2017.07.22 20210722 20220721 % 16000 19,638 = = T
TI-tE 3-f 3
tB-tZH tB-+ZR tBZ+-H
Customer )~ %P 20171020 20221020 2023.10.19 % 15000 17,884 18531 917) 17614 32798
TE-tE+EIHH TRCIETACHE ZZIZETATAR
Customer kK~ BEK 2019.10.05 2021.10.05 20221004 % 15000 17,884 g g - 3T
Z3-nE+ARE ZEC-%1ARA ZECZETAMA
Costomer L~ AL 201811.09 2022.11.09 2003.11.08 2% 15000 17,709 18531 917) 17614 38101
Z2-\E+-FnA ZBZIE+-BAR ZBZ=E+-A)\R
Other customers ~ E1Z R various various various 1%-12%  naTER 7423 4,754 118 40,63% 80,148
Gl G NG
Stage 2 (credit KB
impaired) (fE&HE)
Customer | ZAl 017.07.22 2020722 23,0721 12% 9,000 = 10619 (3374) 7045 18780
“E-tf “EBOE “ECCE
tA-+ZA tA-+ZA tA-+-A
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  43. 2 RIEAMESE BERKE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) B8RS (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables LGB I E 20 B A
(continueq) 15 (48)
Loan  Gross amount ECL
receivables as at ofloan allowance Loan
Loan 20211231, receivables asat  receivablesasat  Value of
Initial grant Date of Maturity date Interest  principal net of ECL asat 31December 2022.12.31, net of asset
date of loan loan renewal of loan rate amount allowance  2022.12.31 2022 ECLallowance collateral
Qb St S St RZEZZ
t2RAZ+-B RIECZE +2A  tIR=t-H
ZRWE +ZA =t-f ZRlE
BEREY MeEEEE  Zt-Az  BEGE MiRBEE BE
ek ERERAN BXHEA HE EXKEH BEEE BUEREE  BBERE FiEEE BRREE
(RvB) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS) (HKS)
(\E®) (Em) (Em) (En) (Em) (Em)
Stage 3 (credit-  SZHER
impaired) (F&HE)
Customer A ZEA 2017.05.18 2019.05.18 2021.05.17 18% 14,250 - 17,008 (17,008) - 21,922
“Z-tEREHN\E ZEZ-AERATNE ZBRZ-FRAftH
Customer A ZPA 2017.06.01 2019.06.01 2021.05.31 12% 19,500 - 23275 (23275) - 30,670
Z5-tE7B-B ZB-NERA-H ZBC-F
#R=1-8
Customer A ZEA 2017.06.01 2019.06.01 2021.05.31 12% 7,000 - 8,355 (8,355) - 11,185
“3-tERR-B ZE-E e S
7~E-8 BA=1+-8
Customer A ZPA 2017.11.10 2019.11.10 2021.11.09 18% 13400 - 15,994 (15,994) - 52,536
“EtE+-BH ZR-AEt-B+E Z2Z-%+-AAH
Customer B ZFB 2019.02.21 2020.02.21 20211231 12% 26,000 - 26,513 (26,513) - 58,632
ity b2 Z3IEE Z3-&
ZAZt+-H ZAZt+-H t2A=+-H
TOTAL: 290,171 303,884 (104,526) 199,358
3t

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief
of the Directors and having made all reasonable
enquiries, each of the borrowers and security providers
and their respective ultimate beneficial owners is a
third party independent of and not connected with
the Company, its connected persons or associates.
All the loans were made under finance leasing
arrangements, with pledged non-current assets valued
at above the principal amount of the loan provided
by the borrowers as collateral to fortify the repayment
obligations of the loans. The pledged non-current
assets used as collaterals are normally machineries
or production lines, the exact types of which would
normally depend on the nature of operating activities
of the collateral providers, ranging from mining
equipment, crane, plastic molding machines or
metallic wiring machines. As the Group is contractually
entitled to enforce the sales of the collaterals if the
loans default, the Board considers that the availability
of the pledged non-current assets collaterals should
provide higher certainty on the recoverability of the
loans.

BEFFE—UEEHBRARM
EERERE SERARBEFRERAL
REEZEEBRREBmBEAARSBILNE
NSIR H%ﬁ@)\:’:%ﬁﬁﬁ)\]ﬂ—iﬁfﬂ%
BEREZE = PTAEERRERE
AR R B 0% R AR
ZEMAERETEHEZERTIFR
HEEFRIERR UNRERENRE
- BEERRZBRITIERBEESR
ERARMEEER HEBREETEN
AR RREHAZKEETHMNE &
ERiERA  EEN BRI E S
BREGE AN AEBERBESNAERE
ERENFRRFIHERRIERS EF
ERR/REHUBEFIERSEER TR
FEREIR S BRI UR[El 1% 2 e TE 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B HRR MR

31 December 2022

—EBCHF+-HA=+—H
43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, S RIEMRETIEZBERKE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@&
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables ) G B2 I B 20 FY B 1=
(continued) IE (#8)
As as 31 December 2021
RZE—F+ZH=+-H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MER B E-EEL 1aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FAET TAT TAT
Other receivables, gross HEU R IE4E R 214,600 = 32,120 246,720
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B HERERIEZ
receivables SHEMEE
SE= (20,646) = (32,120) (52,766)
Other receivables, net HtEWRIERE 193,954 - = 193,954
As as 31 December 2022
KZEZZ&+ZB=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE B FRE 1t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TERT TET TAET
Other receivables, gross Htt K IER 168,587 - 29,276 197,863
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B B EREIEZ
receivables SHEHEE
518 (30,439) - (29,276) (59,715)
Other receivables, net HitEWRIERE 138,148 - - 138,148
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £HEMEBEZBENREE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables )\ G B2  EI B2 FY B I =
(continued) IE (#)
Movements for ECL of other receivables are as follows: HEWIETEHR = EEEE8a&sHn T .
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE FIRE EMRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FET THERT
At 1 January 2021 R_E-_—F—F—H 21,238 - 71,148 92,386
Reversal of ECL R EEREED (579) - (41,052) (41,631)
Exchange realignment FER R (13) - 2,024 2,011
As at 31 December 2021 and R —F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—-Hk
B "H—-A-H 20,646 - 32,120 52,766
Provision of ECL RHEEHERER 11,621 - - 11,621
Exchange realignment ER R (1,828) - (2,844) (4,672)
As at 31 December 2022 RZIZEZZ
+-B=+—H 30,439 - 29,276 59,715
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ImRMEE

31 December 2022

- H+ZH=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. S REMRTSIE BEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FEERRE @
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables B0\ F 850 N E = R B 1 fE =

(continued) IE (#8)

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—-F+ZA=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

E—MEER EREER HMEER st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FTERT AT FHET

Advances to associates, gross = YNSTE-E b 132,068 = = 132,068
Less: ECL on advances to associates A BEATRRY

BHEERE (8,671) - - (8,671)

Advances to associates, net = YNSTE-EGeR ] 123,397 = = 123,397

As at 31 December 2022
RZEZZF+ZB=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—PEER BREER B 1zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAERT AT iR

Advances to associates, gross HE AT RIBE - 114,714 - 114,714
Less: ECL on advances to associates i - BEE AT BEHZ

RHEEBE - (36,905) - (36,905)

Advances to associates, net HEATRIFE - 77,809 - 77,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. £REMRSIEZEERKE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE (@)
Advances to associates, loan and other receivables BE LGB ENEN S E M EKE
(continued) IE (#)
Movements for allowance for ECL of advances to BME NGB RN B EEHERESE
associates are as follows: ERIN
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE B B=MEER 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTAET FAET FTET
As at 1 January 2021 TR -F—F—H - - - -
Allowance for ECL on advances to = NCI - (2l
associates FEEERE 8,474 - - 8,474
Exchange realignment fE R iR 197 - - 197
As 31 December 2021 and 1 RZE-—%F
January 2022 +ZA=+—-Hk
—E”__%—R—H 8,671 - - 8,671
Transfer of stages PR Er (8,671) 8,671 - -
Allowance for ECL on advances to =Nt 2l
associates FERERE - 29,002 - 29,002
Exchange realignment [E R B - (768) - (768)
As 31 December 2022 RZEZZE
+ZB=+—H - 36,905 - 36,905
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables are
categorised into the following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
have not experienced a significant increase in credit
risk since origination and impairment recognised on
the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
to customers have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs
non credit-impaired).

Stage 3

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables that
are in default and considered credit impaired (Lifetime
ECLs credit impaired).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

43.

EHEREEZ BEREER (&)

FERRE (8)
BERE B BN E T RE MERL

E (#)

K%@Hﬁh%@?ﬁ o B E R
R IA D B2 U T BB ER
£—FEER

BE QTR B E R R E MR
HzEERBBEELLURL EEEE

B #Z1 28 B FRAAE &R (1288 &
HIEEER WEERSTRE-

Eol

BERARRM BWEFERREMR
Bz EERBBEEELURHIFEE Y
BRI HEREEHE LEREER
BZ2HEREERR NEERA
Be

E=PEES
EHRME AT RN BRERREM
BWRIRE A HREERE (FERE

Z2PBEREEER) -



43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Advances to associates, loan and other receivables
(continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of advances to
associates, loan and other receivables has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the advances
to associates, loan and other receivables assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in loan and other receivables from external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

Cash at bank

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks.

Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank is assessed to be
close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2021 and 2022.
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31 December 2022
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, SHIERAMETEZ BEREE (@)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REEERE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds KAEBMNBRKE M RERD T BB
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool BESEMAS T EHESH T AN
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments SHEE WEKE ZES R EMEK
and financial assets (e.g., trade and other receivables) =;IE) WE BRI RTEAEEEL IR
and projected cash flows from operations. £ o
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance rNEBEEBEABERIETESHREM
between continuity of funding and flexibility through HEESHTHESNIEEL BT
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RERE AR AEBER DT B KREE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the HHzemaEsEETmT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2022
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 1to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
IS RESR
BIRAE BER —&R —Enf BALE HERELH RREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER FET FER FER THET THET
Trade and bills payables ENBRRTRENES - - 157,291 - - 157,291 157,291
Financial liabilities included in 5t AELME (IR
other payables and accruals B ERZz&REE - - 247,566 - - 247,566 247,566
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMBEE 8.93 58,814 416,399 - - 475,213 440,044
Amounts due to related parties  FEJ BB 7B - - 691 - - 691 691
Lease liabilties REaE 6.91 = 47,996 103,638 27,544 179,178 151,006
58,814 869,943 103,638 27,544 1,059,939 996,598
2021
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest On Within 1t0 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate demand one year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
mEEH REGIR
ELvilES BER —&R —ERfF BALE RERBLE KEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER FiER FiER THERT TERT TET
Trade and bills payables ENEZEIRELER = = 140,738 = = 140,738 140,738
Financial liabilities included in &t AEL (T IER
other payables and accruals EHERzSHAE - - 147,986 - - 147,986 147,986
Bank and other borrowings RITREMES 9.06 59,950 502,820 - - 562,770 520,999
Amounts due to related parties F& {3 Rk 5 7B - - 14,940 - - 14,940 14,940
Lease liabilities HEAE 6.88 - 181,423 421,089 243,743 846,255 703,565
59,950 987,907 421,089 243,743 1,712,689 1,528,228
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, £ HIEAMEE BEREE (B)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESREE (@)
Other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause WEREXRERERZHMESST A
are included in the “on demand” time band in the FYRIBARZ RER | — &
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2022, the T oHE+ZA=+—H ZEHEMmE
aggregate carrying amounts of these other borrowings B2 EEE48%8458,814,0008 T (&=
amounted to HK$58,814,000 (2021: HK$59,950,000). ——% 159,950,000/ 7T) ° st R AEE
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, BRI BIBERASSH AR AE
the management does not believe that it is probable TEERISEERIFES - SEEHE
that the lenders will exercise their discretionary rights EZEHMNEESBBIESHIEMRE
to demand immediate repayment. The management HEEHOHRREHEETE—EM
believes that such other borrowings will be repaid in FEREE R EEHEN TE .
one to two years after the end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:
Maturity Analysis — Other borrowings with a BT — BB E M EEE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled KEFEHZAMEE
repayments
Total
Within undiscounted Carrying
one year 1to 2years Over2years cash outflows amount
RIGRRE
—FR —EmE BBmE R 4EEE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET FHET FHET
31 December 2021 —E_—F+”"B=+—H 49,780 14,420 - 64,200 59,950
31 December 2022 &+ "B=+—H 62,931 - - 62,931 58,814
Capital management BAREHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

FEBEXAEENBZER BERFRE
EEABRBEENEN BERRR
WERLER U FHEREF ) FW
RABREREE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group's policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to
related parties and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to
owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

43.

TREAREEZ BRREER (&

BAREIRE (B)
AEBRBKBEBINESREHE
EZRBIE EEHEAREEBIEL
PR AEFNARERER ~EH
AEERAERERE BRRREER
WEEITHG o KEB I R ZE IR
MMZzERREMR - BEZZT -
+ZB=+—BKRZEZ—%+°AH
=t HIEFER AEBTEINE
EEEAZBEE - BEXHRER-

FEBUBESRLEEX (EFFFEMAFU
BERMERFH GEERBR &
B RBERRENEERRE BB
EXAPA - BEHFHEOUERMEZIKR
MO FEAS AR HMFE A R IA R FE 5T
ERIRTREMEBE  EARB ™M
BEkEEEE WRERERREEE
Yo ERTERATIER AE(GEE
REBEHER BEEERLERNT !

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 440,044 520,999
Trade and bills payables FE B SRR EN EE 157,291 140,738
Other payables and accruals HithEAMIBRE &R 247,566 147,986
Amounts due to related parties JFE 1< R Bt 5 =R I8 691 14,940
Lease liabilities HEaE 151,006 703,565
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERREEEY (14,880) (27,433)
Net debt B 558 981,718 1,500,795
Capital &g 801,812 1,128,680
Capital and net debt BARREFEFRE 1,783,530 2,629,475
Gearing ratio BEAEHXE 55% 57%
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Annual Report 2022




43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss had been categorised as level 1 and level 3 within
the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group'’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

43.
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44,

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 44. Eﬂﬁiﬁﬁjéﬂiﬂ’\]ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's TERHEAAEENSIFELENER
liabilities arising from financing activities, including SE AIEES RIEESEFH LT
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising BESENEEARSRENFRAKIRS
from financing activities are those for which cash RETAEEGOUBHRETDSEAS
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the B EEFESANIESRENaGE.
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.
Amounts
Bank due to
Lease and other  Convertible related
liabilities  borrowings bonds parties Total
RITR FE{ BREH 5
HEERE HfEE AaRES MIE 1t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET AT FAET AT AT
As at 1 January 2021 R_E-_—&—H—H 815,919 393,024 108,222 3,678 1,320,843
Financial cost (Note 8) BB (528) 50,705 34,924 16,210 = 101,839
Interest payable FEIH S - (21,903) (13,332) = (35,235)
Interest paid ERFHE = (13,021) = = (13,021)
Addition of lease liabilities REHEEE 46,885 = = = 46,385
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHEAR (47,726) = = = (47,726)
Mature of convertible bond AR ES I = 111,100 (111,100) = =
Financing cash outflows REREMN (186,874) (98,855) = = (285,729)
Financing cash inflows MERSMA = 110,287 = 13,160 123,447
Currency translation adjustment ~ B HEAE 24,656 5,443 = (1,898) 28,201
As at 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—4F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-Hk
- "F—-F—H 703,565 520,999 - 14,940 1,239,504
Financial cost (Note 8) RIBEMA (528) 38,356 110,140 - = 148,496
Interest payable FEfTFIE = (93,776) = = (93,776)
Interest paid ERFHE = (16,364) = = (16,364)
Addition of lease liabilities hEHEERE 164 = = = 164
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (Hz36)
(note 36) (367,941) (8,803) - 440 (376,304)
Financing cash outflows MERS RN (167,735) (92,693) - (17,391) (277,819)
Financing cash inflows BMERERA = 40,748 = = 40,748
Currency translation adjustment & EEE (55,403) (20,207) - 2,702 (72,908)
As at 31 December 2022 RIEZZHF
+-R=+—AH 151,006 440,044 - 691 591,741
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H
R B AT R
FEWBABFIBUWT :

45.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 45,
Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
AT BETEE/
i A REEE AfiRAsEE FATEGEEE DL TBEH
Direct Indirect
B# ik
Most Success Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 40 Lending of logistic
REEEXBRAT HE 10,000 7T facilities
THEMRRIE
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Trading Limited (i) HE/RERM AR #55,000,00075 wine and liquor
FmELE L EEERAE0) DEE
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 50  Sales of green food
Distribution Limited (i), (ii) T/ ERH, AE10,000,0007T products
RIEATHBERRE HEREBRR
BIRE ~ i)
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development Hong Kong HK$100 60 - Lending of logistic
Limited BN 100 7T facilities
XEEBERERRT THEVRRIE
Shenzhen Qianhai PRC/Mainland China UsD10,000,000 - 100 Financial leasing
Dahuangyuan Financing Lease HE/ HE R 10,000,000 7T MEHE
Company Limited (i), (iv)
FBEEA T ERERE
BIRAE) (v)
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100 Rental business
Industry Limited (i) HE,/ e AR £80,000,0007T HEEH
RBAREZEFRAE)
Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited () RE/hE R AR #39,000,0007 BREZK
FHESERELFRAE)
Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB60,950,000 - 100 Trading of mineral
Company Limited (i) HE /R R AE#60,950,0007T products
BT REREEREEAH) BEMES
Shenzhen Dajin Zhenhe PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51 Rental business
Industry Limited E,/ e AR 10,000,0007T HEER

AYHEERNERERAHT

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes:

(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
under the PRC law.

(ii) Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
under the PRC law.

(iii) The Company holds majority of members in the
board of directors which is the governing body of
these companies and therefore has the power to
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the
investment with the investee, and has the power to
affect the amount of those returns.

(iv) The English name of the above PRC companies is for
identification purpose only.

The above table lists the major subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

ﬁAM-JE/-\_J E’J*“--u- (nﬁ)
st

@ R 4% B A 12 5 R AR O
%O

HE AR

(i) WMEPBEZFRIEMAPIGED
#,

(i) FRADFHEHEFE EEREANE
EHE) SHEML R AN
BEZEFARNAEREE LAZH
ERZARERRERARENT
ghom BAENTEZSFERRE
LED

(iv)  EZPERTF YIS B E G A
ZRe

ERITEERRETEREFEXE
HEAAEFEEFEIERLDZAE
A EBEMBAE -EFBRIRMEEM
MBARZFFEEERABTBNR IR

FEEBBEERFERERZWEA
Bl ZEFIBEANT

2022 2021

Percentage of equity interest held by FEIZERRERFTIIFIRET DLE :

non-controlling interests:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FINE AT AR BB micix

Distribution Limited BRAE] 50% 50%
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERRAE 60% 60%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng ITREESEBREEE

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAR (HsFa)

(Note a) -% 45%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ITREERSEFKEERE

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAR (HsFa)

(Note a) -% 45%
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERARE ETREEIR

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAR (sFa)

(Note a) -% 45%

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MBIRRME

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45. MBS ER (&)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss/(profit) for the year allocated to DB FIFERER Z FE
non-controlling interests: B8 (afl)
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food AYHEA AR BB REcix
Distribution Limited EIR AT (4,758) 2,624
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERRAE 4,024 428
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng ITREBAEBREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAT — 2,732
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin TREIRAENKREEE
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR AT - 1,676
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREERE
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAT — (4,981)
Accumulated balances of RS HEAFERETR
non-controlling interests Rt -
at the reporting dates:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FEINIEA T4 BB micix
Distribution Limited BRAE (7,527) (2,689)
Most Success Corporation Limited BEREXERAT 23,251 19,227
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng TREIRAEBREEE
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAT Mizta)
(Note a) - (6,687)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ITREBREHNREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAR (Msta)
(Note a) - (891)
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABLETREEIR
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAR (Mista)
(Note a) - (2,909)
Notes: P
(a) During the year, the Group have disposed the (a FROAEECHENB AR - B

subsidiaries. Please refer to note 36 for detail. 5115 A2 RMEE360

FEILATEEEEZERERAT 213
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 45,

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

KRB ARNED (4&)
TRIT LA B LR M HERBE
BoFMRBEERRH IR ABBMEEZ
Al

Shenzhen

Beidahuang
Green Food Most Success
Distribution  Corporation
Limited Limited

3 |b i
HREaEmicE EREE

2022 —E-C BRAE BIRAR
HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET TAET
Revenue A 122,192 41,730
Total expense Bk 4B %5 (131,707) (35,023)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (B8 aH (9,515) 6,707
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2ME (BB WA LEZE
for the year (9,675) 6,707
Current assets TMENEE 92,648 44,762
Non-current assets EREEE 934 50,543
Current liabilities mENBE 100,185 40,090
Non-current liabilities EREEE 8,451 16,463
Net cash flows generated from KEEEMMERENETREE
operating activities 396 21,465
Net cash flows generated from KRERPSRENE P
investing activities = 4
Net cash flows used in MEZEFFTAERESRE 4
in financing activities (2,764) (25,090)
Net decrease in cash BENIB2EEY R/ 5
and cash equivalents (2,368) (3,621)
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

klb P
177 g |

A #5 SR R P 5

31 December 2022

e B

—_—

45. MRHBATMER (&)

Beijng Bejjing
Shenzhen Chuangzhangu Chuangzhangu Beijing Mumian
Beidahuang Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan
Green Food Most Success Investment Investment Investment
Distribution Corporation Management Management Management
Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co,, ltd Co., Ltd
FEAR TRERAER FRERALH FEAR LT
GBEERRE RrEEE REEE REER REEE
2021 ITI-& BRAF BRAF BRAT ERAH BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TER
Revenue WA 149,082 41,749 32,828 25,585 81,709
Total expense ] (154,330) (42,463) (38,899) (29,309) (70,641)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (518) /%7 (5,248) (714) (6,071) (3.724) 11,068
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EE2E BR /
for the year WAEE (4,932) (714) (6,489) 4137) 9477
Current assets THEE 777 40,577 12,074 11,927 60,402
Non-current assets FrRBEE 1489 77,754 41,637 39,070 282,502
Current liabilities pitai=U| 66,517 61,171 51,139 43371 108,049
Non-current liabiltes FRBEN 12,127 25,115 17,432 9,606 21319
Net cash flows generated from operating X2 ZBF1S
activities ReEnEse 1,942 33,864 23,647 21,332 62,685
Net cash flows generated from investing &R ZZBIFR1S
activities ReEnete 13 - 2 3 6
Net cash flows used in BEEBIMA
in financing activities RengRE (2,864) (28,890) (23,522) (22,045) (61,463)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBELEEYW (6 /0
and cash equivalents 28 (909) 4,974 127 (710) 1,228

FEIEAREXREEZERARAT
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46.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

AT BARR R R H#

FRBDRBREPROF BT KREHR

of the Company at the end of the reporting period BiE -
includes:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT MR 856,140 1,438,005
Total non-current asset ERMEEEEE 856,140 1,438,005
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Prepayments, deposits and TARRIE & R H AU

other receivables I8 8,294 4,477
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 5 5
Total current assets MENEESE 8,299 4,482
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREEE
Other borrowings HiEE 356,764 356,400
Other payables and accruals HthE(I B EE & B 196,086 98,966
Amounts due to related parties FE 11 BRI BGk 75 7B 691 21,383
Total current liabilities RE B E4EEE 553,541 476,749
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEEFEE (545,242) (472,267)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEMRERRBHERE

CURRENT LIABILITIES 310,898 965,738
Net assets BEEFE 310,898 965,738
EQUITY =
Issued capital BETRA 631,337 622,513
Reserves EX (320,439) 343,225
Total equity e AR ER 310,898 965,738

Jiang Jiangjun I#EE Ke Xionghan 1 1t 58
Director EE Director EE

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

46. BRBMFRRRE iR (B

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as INNTEEESEU T ;
follows:
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
B 1
RIVEER  BREGEE B5kRE B8 st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEr TEr TER TER TER
At 1 January 2021 RZE--&5—-F-H 1,669,298 - 728 (1,276,808) 393,218
Loss for the year FEBR - - - (53,725) (53,725)
Equity-settled share option arrangements RS ERR R - 3732 - - 3732
Transfer to accumulated losses upon mature ~ FAEI R EH DIHFEEZ R 5
convertible bonds - - (728) 728 -
At 31 December 2021 RZE--&+"F=+-H 1,669,298 3,732 - (1,329,805) 343,225
Loss for the year FEHB - = = (654,840) (654,840)
Exercised share options BiTERBRE (5,839) (2,985) - - (8,824)
Lapsed share option BEMEBRE - (99) - 99 =
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+ZRA=+-H 1,663,459 648 - (1,984,546) (320,439)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BERASBESAEE CEF]) ' KAAF
KR aBRNETAIHDIKTEAT
REIEREBEZZDIKKREER &
NEARENEEENASEBBE
FREIHABIETS °

FEEATEEEEZERERAR
2022 FR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
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47. LITIGATION 47. iRER
(i) HCA 1867 of 2015 (i) ZZ—HFHCA 1867
On 18 August 2015, the Company received N_E—RENB+NB > E&AQ
a writ of summons issued from the High SN EESE LIRS &
Court of Hong Kong (the “Writ"”) relating to a LR (TSR "B E-EEA

claim by Mr. Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former
Director of the Company. Pursuant to the Writ,
Mr. Qu claims against the Company for the
sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for the
Company’s wrongful refusal of the issue of
2,500,000 shares of the Company to him upon
his exercise of the share options. The trial was
heard before Judge from 8 December 2022
to 14 December 2022, and on 10 February
2023, it was adjudicated by the Court that the
Company shall pay damages to the Plaintiff,
assessed at HK$4,394,000, and costs. The
Company has decided to appeal against the
said judgment, and thus the Company filed a
Notice of Appeal on 6th March 2023. On 30
March 2023, the Company received a winding
up petition filed by Mr. Qu for an order that
the Company may be wound up by the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region pursuant to the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong) for being
unable to pay a debt of an amount of
HK$4,291,684.55, being the Reduced
Amount together with its accrued interest of
HK$1,347,684.55 as at 7 March 2023. The
Petition will be heard on 7 June 2023 before
the Companies Court.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022

BRESRREIBA 4 (TErE))
RHZERE - REBESHK BEE
MAABINEARETEBRE
BAREERLEEET2,500,000
BRAEARBRMDMEERABTRE
$+%86,069,0008 7T (BNIEEEE
B) BHER T _F+=
BABE_E-__#+_H
+OEHPBEBEREAEERETE
HoMZEBEZ=F"F+H %
R EAATBBRE LGB
EEE GFE£EE54,394,000
BIT) RABE - ARBEREM
ZHRRERE L A AR R T
SE_F=ZANNBHREXLFE
ME-R-T-_=F=FB=+
H XA RIZERLERRH
BEEFH AEXRKHISEAEKRERE
BEEEAA4,291,684. 558 TTHIE
B ERLEBEERAEHECT
S _—FE=-AtHRZEFAE
1,347,684.5587T) » HE B
THESELRIRES AL
FNE(NE (BB RMIEHRD)
1\%1@ IYEHARREEITER - ZE
BN __E2_=F£,BtHR
’AT%%&%&% EITER AT 0



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. LITIGATION (continued)

(i)

HCA 1948 of 2019

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a
writ of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019)
issued on behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for
an order to direct the Company to deliver
up the share certificate of 5,000,000 (Bonus)
Shares issued in January 2016 and damages
to be assessed. The said Gemini Funds Limited
has also taken out an application for summary

judgment against the Company returnable

before a Master of the High Court on 9 April
2020. The legal representative of the Company
filed an Acknowledgment of Service on 6
November 2019, and the Company has filed a
notice to the Court to oppose the application
by the said Plaintiff to enter judgment against
the Company. The hearing was heard before a
Judge on 21 January 2021 and pursuant to the
Judgement, the Company delivered up the said
share certificate to the Plaintiff on 24 March
2021. At the same time, the Company filed a
Notice to Appeal on 18 February 2021.

mE BRI

31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

47. & _l\ (IIE)

M

—hfﬁHCA 1948
N ZE-NAF+RARZ+HE
KABZEERFGemini Funds
Limited25 2 2 B LMK BRES
—EF—NEFEHCA 1948) - #H
ED?TE/‘I‘$@TE\_7_/\¢
B R H B2 17/Y5,000,0008
(AR R E R FTEMNBE
B2 1E o FrittGemini Funds Limited
T E AR ERBEFEN
“EIZFHANAHESEE
Pt BERRIRIENREZF IR A
NEWEEREBARZE—N
FH+—ARNHERKERNE
BARABBEMERIERER U
¥ EitRERE ZNTH
KABHIRZ BB - RANZE
T —F—RBZ+—HEZER
ULTTE’UFE%F#'J/? RABRZ
T—F=ZAZ+MHMERS
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ FoHIIERAF > AR
BN ZE—F"_A+/\BHIE
R EFFBEHME-

PEIEAREREEZERARAR
2022 F3R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R MY 5E

31 December 2022
BT TF+ZHRE=+—H
LITIGATION (continued)

g A
1 o =

47.

(iii)

(iv)

HCMP 1296 of 2021

On 7 September 2021, the legal representatives
of the Company filed a Notice of Originating
Summons to the High Court (under HCMP
1296 of 2021) to apply to the Court to dispute
a Statutory Demand dated 12 August 2021
issued on behalf of Madam LIN TONG (#%f)
for the sum of HK$4,747,254.03. The case has
been adjourned sine die.

On the same subject matter, Madam LIN TONG

(# ) (“Madam Lin") through her legal
representatives in Cayman Islands issued a
Statutory Demand on 28 October 2021 to the
Company’s registered address in the Cayman
Islands. Then on 13 December 2021, a winding
up petition was issued out of the Grand Court
of the Cayman Islands and returnable on 3
March 2022, under which the said LIN TONG
petitioned to wind up the Company unless
the amount HK4,942,814.80 was paid. The
Company then settled the matter with the
petitioner (Madam Lin), and the winding up
petition had been withdrawn by the consent of
the parties on or about 3 March 2022.

HCCW 115 of 2022

On 25 April 2022, the Company received a
petition (“Madam Yan's Petition”) filed by Ms.
Yan Huijuan (“Madam Yan") for an order that
the Company may be wound up by the High
Court pursuant to the Ordinance. Madam
Yan's Petition was filed against the Company
for being unable to repay a debt of amount
HK$5,251,773.03. Details of Madam Yan's
Petition were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 25 April 2022. Madam
Yan's Petition was heard before a Judge on
12 December 2022 and the matter was finally
settled with the said Petition (Madam Yan's
Petition) formally dismissed.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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47.

afrsh (48)

(iii)

(iv)

—ZE " —FHCMP 1296
=Sy = K wll = I /N
EZERBARSFERERER
FEEBEHN RRAZT—F
HCMP 1296) » AMEFEEREERL
REMP 2B EZH BT
- FN\B+HZEEA
4,747,254.038 T A EEREE
EETMBF M EEEIRR
JEIE o

FABREMNEIE ML L (T
x)) BBERBEEREZ X
EREBABLR ARRHERS
HEftmiutEH—mEBEAZ
B —F+BAZH+NHZERE
EREEE-BERNZIZEZ—F
+ZB+=H>—HmBEEH
HEREKR ZREHITENZ
T _E=-B=HFMN EIt-
MEE2FEREABFE > BRIE
4,942,814.80B T EZ I o AR
EIMERMZEEEZFZAN (ML
T) ER MR BEREFELKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. LITIGATION (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139, (2021)

Su 0707 Minchu No. 7708, (2021) Su 07
Minzhong No. 1478 and (2022) Su 0706
Minchu No. 4506

On 31 August 2020, the Company’s subsidiary,
Lianyungang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co.,
Ltd. CEEBESLEREZE AR AE) ("Huajin
Huahong"”) received a civil ruling (REHEZ)
issued on behalf of Jiangsu Pinpai Real Estate
Co., Ltd. CIERIKEFEBRAE) (“Pinpai”)
under (2021) Su 0707 Caibao No. 139 ((2021)
#O0707841R139 $%). According to the civil
ruling (REFH T ), Pinpai being the plaintiff,
requested to freeze the bank accounts of
Huajin Huahong. In addition, according to the
civil judgment (EZE#I7R8Z) under (2021) Su
0707 Minchu No. 7708 ( (2021)&0707E %]
7708 5%), the court ordered Huajin Huahong
to pay RMB1,556,545.50 as service provider of
advertising and promotion, and e-commerce;
and commission together with the interest
thereon to Pinpai. Huajin Huahong appealed
to the Lianyungang Intermediate Court for
retrial under (2021) Su 07 Minzhong No. 1478
((2021)ER07ER481478%%) . According to the
civil mediation (R :8# =) under (2022) Su
0706 Minchu No. 4506 ((2022) #0706
45065%) on 22 August 2022, the parties agreed
reached a full and final settlement by paying
RMB1,300,000 by Huajin Huahong to Pinpai.

(2022) Su 0706 Minchu No.4506

On 22 August 2022, the Company’s subsidiary,
Lianyugang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co., Ltd
(EEBESEREXHMRLE) received a
civil judgement (RE & EE) issued on behalf
of Wang Pengcheng (EH§#2) (“Wang”) under
(2022) Su 0706 Minchu No0.4506 ((2022)
ER0706ER #)45065%) . According to the civil
judgement (REHESE), Wang being the
plaintiff, request the repayment on the loan
principle in RMB5,000,000 and interest in
2% per month. Jiangsu Province Lianyungang
Shi Haizhiu Qu Intermediate Court judged
Lianyugang Huajin Huahong Industrial Co.,
Ltd CEERETEREEHFMAF) had to
repayment the loan principle in RMB5,000,000
and interest in four times for the Prime rate of
National Interbank Funding Center authorized
by People’s Bank of China.

ra B EmRRMEE
31 December 2022
2T+ "BA=+—H

47. iR (48)

(v)

(vi)

(2021)%%070754 R 1395 * (2021)
#0707 R #77085% ~ (2021)%507
F4%1478%% 5%(2022)# 0706 & #7)
450655
ATETEFNA=Z+—H &K
NEINBABIEEBESTEIR
BEARATESER)) BENR
KIGRKEEXEERR2E (TR
K BEZREHTEE RES
(2021)ER0707R4 1R 1395%) 1R
EEHTEE RkARSE  EX
A ESIFERIBITIRA o 1LY
RIBREHRE GRIEA(2021)
BRO707R#7708%%) » &Pz H
RESTEREAMKIMTARKE
1,556,545.5070 fEARRHES
Rt EU R BERY ; RAE
BREME - ELER LFHFE
BEEBDREIRES (BRA
(2021)EF07R #814785E) - iR#E —
T _H#N\AZ+HZ(022)
0706 1450658 B F 2 R =
ARE SHRRERNEZEKRR
B ESEIRAERMIKZ Y
AR #1,300,0007s °

(2022)&50706 E #145065%
W_E_—_E#NB=Z+=8"
AANBMBRABEEEBESE
BEEARADBERKRIRR
TE)) HEZESFHTEE R
#5(2022)850706 R §)4506%5%) © 1R
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BiEEFA£ ARE5,000,000
TRERE2%ENF R
IEHEEEEMEMNE PR E
PR R BEERESTEREXR
RARBEBEEREEARK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022
—ECTHF+"HA=1+—H

47. LITIGATION (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651, (2021)

Yue 03 Minzhong No. 23004 and (2022) Yue
Minshen No. 4179

On 26 May 2021, the Company’'s subsidiary,
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution
Ltd. (“Green Food"”) CHRINIEATIAR B RAD
KA PBRAT) received a civil judgment (RE ¥
R2)issued on behalf of Shenzhen Zhongdun
United Investment Technology Co., Ltd. (%
P BEEERNEBRAE) ("Zhongdun”)
under (2021) Yue 0304 Minchu No. 13651
((2021)E0304E#J136515%) . According to
the civil judgment (R #|7RE), Zhongdun
being the plaintiff, requested to (i) cancellation
of contract no. 20200403-002 “Rice Sales
Contract”; (ii) return the contract deposit
of RMB3,400,000 to Zhongdun; (iii) pay the
interest of the above deposit of RMB3,400,000;
and (iv) bear all litigation costs. The case has
been appealed to the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangdong Province and on
25 October 2021, Green Food received a civil
judgment under (2021) Yue 03 Minzhong No.
23004 ((2021)E03FR4£230045%). According
to the civil judgment, (a) the issue in (i) above
being upheld; (b) the issue in (iii) above being
cancelled; (c) referring to the issue in (ii)
above, Green Food has to return RMB760,000
together with interest to Zhongdun; and (d)
reject the issue in (iv) above. Green Food
has applied to the Higher People’s Court of
Guangdong Province for retrial on 8 April 2022
under (2022) Yue Minshen No. 4179 ((2022)
BER 417958 but the appeal was dismissed
by the Higher People’s Court of Guangdong
Province on 12 July 2022.

HCCW 3 of 2023

On 9 January 2023, the Company received a
petition (“Mr. Zhang's Petition”) filed by Mr.
Zhang Zhiguang (“Mr. Zhang"”) for an order
that the Company may be wound up by the
High Court under the Ordinance pursuant to a
Statutory Demand (for being unable to repay
a debt of an amount of HK$7,197,841.10).
Details of Mr. Zhang's Petition were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 10
January 2023. Mr. Zhang's Petition was heard
before Master on 15 March 2023 and was
adjourned to 5 July 2023.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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47.

48.

49,

50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION (continued)

(ix) CACV 71 of 2023
On 6 March 2023, the Company filed a Notice
of Appeal to the Court to appeal against
the Judgment that the quantum of damages
beHK$2,944,000.00 (“Reduced Amount”) only.

(x) HCCW 144 of 2023

On 30 March 2023, the Company received a
winding up petition filed by Mr. Qu Shuncai
(under HCCW 144 of 2023) for an order that
the Company may be wound up by the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region pursuant to the Companies (Winding
Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong) for being
unable to pay a debt of an amount of
HK$4,291,684.55, being the Reduced
Amount together with its accrued interest of
HK$1,347,684.55 as at 7 March 2023. The
Petition will be heard on 7 June 2023 at 9:30
a.m. before the Companies Court.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$164,000
in respect of lease arrangements for leased properties.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation. These
reclassification have no impact on the Group’s loss for
the year 31 December 2022 and the total equity as at
31 December 2022.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023.

47.

48.

49.

50.

— —/\(

(ix)

(x)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited

TERBEFERBERLEHREEZRER
BE -BERFERED DEREETEZ
REZUBRER LEFBEERY EHNH

financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, e
is set out below.
RESULTS e |
Year ended 31 December
HE+T-A=t+—HILEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FHT THT THT
Revenue ON 930,276 928,785 859,095 779,305 1,267,140
(Loss)/profit before taxation briRAT (B548) /B A (224,271) (170,130) 7,681 (341,893) 12,628
Income tax credit/(expenses) FiEESR/ (%) 1,872 (7,160) (2,224) 984 (851)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /57 (222,399) (177,290) 5,457 (340,909) 11,777
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TR (B518) /a7
Owners of the parent SAFEBA (218,450) (170,916) 14,778 (291,072) 4,650
Non-controlling interests R (3,949) (6,374) (9,321) (49,837) 7,127
(222,399) (177,290) 5,457 (340,909) 11,777
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE - BERIEIZERERS
As at 31 December
®+-BA=+-8H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T T#T FHET FTHET
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 1,944,974 2,880,051 2,994,530 3,012,655 2,547,969
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (1,159,340) (1,775,655) (1,723,857) (1,783,399) (1,035,980)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS E|2eg g 16,178 24,284 14,526 81 (52,980)
801,812 1,128,680 1,285,199 1,229,337 1,459,009

224 China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022




g

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Rt X REEEEIERFRAT



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事履歷
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收入報表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



